Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

Wednesday, 23 November 2022
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
will meet on
Thursday, 1 December 2022
beginning at
6:00 pm
in the
Pilands Wood Centre, Chamberlayne Rd, Southampton SO31 8DT
TO:

Councillor Tonia Craig (Chair)
Councillor Steve Holes (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Malcolm Cross
Councillor Liz Jarvis

Staff Contacts:

Councillor Adam Manning
Councillor Jane Rich

Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer,
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk
Ross McClean, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3367; Email:
ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk

JOANNE CASSAR
Executive Head of Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website
as well as in other formats.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting,
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed. To register please
contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
This meeting will be recorded and published on the Council's YouTube channel.
Please also be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social
media is permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or
Support Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities
can be provided. More information can be found here.
Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers.

1

AGENDA
1.

Apologies

2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2022.

3.

Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

4.

Public Participation
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is
12pm on 30 November 2022.
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we can
manage numbers. We are still encouraging all those in attendance to take a
lateral flow test before attending the meeting. PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND IF
YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS.

5.

Chair's Announcements

6.

Report of the Local Area Manager (Pages 13 - 22)

7.

Presentation on Planning Guidelines

8.

Planning Application - Barncroft, Farm Close, Hamble-Le-Rice, Southampton,
SO31 4RZ - F/22/93701 (Pages 23 - 38)
Conversion of boat storage building to form 1no. one bedroom dwelling with car
parking, amenity space, cycle and bin storage, landscaping and boundary
treatment (F/22/93701 (revision of refused planning application (F/22/92654)).

9.

Planning Application - 1 Rope Walk, Hamble-Le-Rice, Southampton, SO31 4HB F/21/91037 (Pages 39 - 58)
Conversion from restaurant to 2no. residential dwellings (1no. two-bedroom and
1no. four-bedroom) with two-storey rear extension, addition of pitched roof to
existing single storey rear projection, elevational alterations and internal changes
to facilitate conversion. (F/21/91037)

10.

Planning Application - 1 Rope Walk, Hamble-Le_Rice, Southampton, SO31 4HB L/21/91048 (Pages 59 - 68)
Listed Building Consent: Conversion from restaurant to 2no. residential dwellings
(1no. 4-bedroom and 1no. 2-bedroom) with two-storey rear extension, addition of
pitched roof to existing single storey rear projection, elevational alterations and
internal changes to facilitate conversion. (L/21/91048)

2

11.

TROs Various Roads Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound (Pages 69 - 106)

12.

Planning Appeals
The Legal Services Manager to report:(a)

that the following appeals have been lodged:Advertisement hoardings north of the Plough Inn, Bursledon,
Portsmouth Road, Bursledon, SO31 8BT
Display of 1no. internally illuminated digital LED screen (A/22/92983)
This was a delegated decision.
Fairport House, Lands End Road, Bursledon, Southampton. SO31
8DN
Proposed use of existing home office building by non-resident of the
property (F/22/92564)
This was a delegated decision.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 26 January 2023 at 6:00 pm
In the Pilands Wood Centre, Chamberlayne
Rd, Southampton SO31 8DT
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus
lots more.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
1
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 22 September 2022 (6:00 pm – 7:54 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Craig (Chair); Councillors Holes, Cross, Jarvis (from 6.11pm)
and Manning
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rich
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
145.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on
the agenda.

146.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2022 be approved as
correct.

147.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Ex-councillor David Airey spoke in relation to the ‘path to nowhere’ that
leads into Ingleside, and requested an update on when it would become a
‘path to somewhere’.
It was agreed that the Local Area Manager would provide an update in
writing in due course.

148.

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chair congratulated Eastleigh Borough Council on behalf of
Bursledon, Hamble-Le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee on winning
the APSE Council of the Year award, out of 330 applicants. She extended
her, and the Committee’s, thanks to all staff and officers for the work they
had put in, and continue to put in, on councillors and residents’ behalf.
Ex-Councillor David Airey also extended his congratulations.

5

2

149.

REPORT OF THE LOCAL AREA MANAGER
Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda
item 6) that contained recommendations for expenditure from the
Committee’s developer contributions.
RESOLVED –
That the Committee:

150.

(1)

Approved the grant of £5320.70 to Hound Parish Council to
fund replacement LED lights to Abbey Hall and Hound Parish
Hall.

(2)

Approved the allocation of £3031 to install seven standard
floor mounted Broxap Derby 120L dual waste bins at Hamble
Marina, Bus Stop by Cleverley Rise, Queens View Netley
Abbey, the bus stop outside The Plough Pub, Aquila Way, Oak
Road and Boundary Road in Bursledon.

(3)

Approved the allocation of £500 from the local grant budget for
Hamble Youth Club FC.

(4)

Approved the allocation of £1000 from reserves to Long Oak
Pre-school for an outdoor storage unit.

(5)

Noted the achievements in the local area supported by the
LAC, highlighted in appendix A.

LOCAL LISTING OF BUILDING(S)
Consideration was given to the report of the Strategic Planning Manager
(Agenda item 7).
The Strategic Planning Manager reminded the Committee that although a
local listing does not provide full protection, it does add a level of
protection.
RESOLVED –
that the following building, being of special architectural and historic
interest, be added to the Council’s local list: Briarleigh, 76 Victoria
Road, Netley Abbey SO31 5DS.
(NOTE: Former Councillor David Airey spoke in support of the
recommendation and stated he was pleased to see the report and strongly
supported is recommendation, along with Hound Parish Council and the
local community.)

6

3

151.

PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES
The Senior Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that
had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in
particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account. This
was set against the broader policy framework.

152.

PLANNING APPLICATION - GREYWELL, HIGH STREET, BURSLEDON,
SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8DL - T/22/93274
Item 9 on the Agenda was heard after Items 10 and 11.
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning
and Economy (Agenda item 9) concerning a proposal to 1 no. oak (T1) –
Fell, 1 no. sycamore (T2) – Fell, 1 no. beech (T3) – Fell, 1 no. sycamore
(T4) – Fell. Structural damage to the wall is the reason for these 4 trees to
be removed. Replacement planting with 8 no. small leaved lime
(T/22/93274).
There were no updates.
RESOLVED –
That the Committee PERMITTED the tree work, subject to the
conditions set out in the Agenda.
(NOTE: One person spoke in objection to the application stating that it was
a shame to lose four trees, one a 200-year-old oak tree, for the sake of a
brick wall.)

153.

PLANNING APPLICATION - GREYWELL, HIGH STREET, BURSLEDON,
SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8BL - H/22/93352
Item 10 on the Agenda was heard before Item 9, and was heard at the
same time as Item 11.
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning
and Economy (Agenda item 10) concerning an application for the
construction of a garage with ancillary first floor accommodation, the
rebuilding of a brick boundary wall and a new internal courtyard wall
(H/22/93352).
The Committee was updated that:


Condition 4 had been amended from:
The development hereby permitted shall only be used in
conjunction with the existing dwelling and shall not, at any
time, be used for business, commercial or industrial purposes
or as an independent residential unit

7

4
To:
The development hereby permitted shall only be used for
purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the existing
dwellinghouse and shall not, at any time, be used for any
business, commercial or industrial purposes or as an
independent residential unit.
Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining residential
properties and in the interest of highway safety.


An updated Bursledon Parish Council response had been received
on 15th September 2022 in response to amended plans received:
Councillors recommend conditions be applied to address concerns
over potential subdivision or commercial use.



The proposed garage plans had been amended to show the correct
orientation/labels and the plan had been amended from 11F to 11G.

RESOLVED That permission be granted subject to a further condition to reuse
the existing bricks in the replacement boundary wall, with the
wording of the condition to be agreed by the Chair and Vice-Chair.
(NOTE: One member of the public spoke in objection to the trees being
felled citing concerns that trees should be more improtant than the listed
heritage of a wall.)
154.

PLANNING APPLICATION - GREYWELL, HIGH STREET, BURSLEDON,
SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8BL - L/22/93401
Item 11 on the Agenda was heard before Item 9, and was heard at the
same time as Item 10.
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning
and Economy (Agenda item 11) concerning an application for the
construction of a garage with ancillary first floor accommodation, the
rebuilding of a brick boundary wall and a new internal courtyard wall
(L/22/93401).
The Committee was updated that:


Condition 4 had been amended from:
The development hereby permitted shall only be used in
conjunction with the existing dwelling and shall not, at any
time, be used for business, commercial or industrial purposes
or as an independent residential unit
To:

8

5
The development hereby permitted shall only be used for
purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the existing
dwellinghouse and shall not, at any time, be used for any
business, commercial or industrial purposes or as an
independent residential unit.
Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining residential
properties and in the interest of highway safety.


An updated Bursledon Parish Council response had been received
on 15th September 2022 in response to amended plans received:
Councillors recommend conditions be applied to address concerns
over potential subdivision or commercial use.



The proposed garage plans had been amended to show the correct
orientation/labels and the plan had been amended from 11F to 11G.

RESOLVED That permission be granted subject to a further condition to reuse
the existing bricks in the replacement boundary wall, with the
wording of the condition to be agreed by the Chair and Vice-Chair.
(NOTE: One member of the public spoke in objection to the trees being
felled citing concerns that trees should be more improtant than the listed
heritage of a wall.)
155.

PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND ADJACENT TO 10 CROWSPORT
ESTATE HAMBLE-LE-RICE, SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 4HG - C/22/92414
The Committee considered the report of Executive Head of Planning &
Economy (Agenda item 12) concerning an application for the erection of
1no. detached 3-bedroom dwelling provided with access, covered parking
area, amenity and storage facilities following demolition of 2no. existing
garages at land adjacent to 10 Crowsport Estate, Hamble -Le-Rice, SO31
4HG (C/22/92414).
The Committee was updated that:



Comments were still awaited from Southern Water, Southern
Electric and Natural England; and
The applicant had agreed to secure mitigation towards recreational
pressure on The Solent and New Forest SPAs.

Four councillors voted in favour of the application, the Chair voted against
the application.
RESOLVED That permission be GRANTED subject to any actions required
following outstanding consultation responses and mitigation being

9

6
secured towards recreational pressure on The Solent and New Forest
SPAs.
(NOTE: The applicant’s agent spoke in support of the application.)
156.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EDENBRIDGE HOUSE, SCHOOL ROAD,
BURSLEDON, SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8BW - H/22/93338
The Committee considered the report of Executive Head of Planning &
Economy (Agenda item 13) concerning an application for the retention of
existing gate piers and the installation of a new vehicular entrance gate at
Edenbridge House, School Road, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8BW
(H/22/93338).
The Committee was updated that:



Materials had been agreed; and
There was no objection from the Council’s Heritage Consultant.

RESOLVED That permission be GRANTED.
(Note: The applicant spoke in support of the application.)
157.

PLANNING APPLICATION - SKYLARK, SALTERNS LANE,
BURSLEDON, SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8DH - H/22/92887
The Committee considered the report of Executive Head of Planning &
Economy (Agenda item 14) concerning an application for alterations to a
detached garage to provide storage at first floor (H/22/92887).
The Committee was updated that:



There was no objection from Bursledon Parish Council; and
In Condition 1 – the drawing was updated to ‘Rev C’ not ‘B’.

Two councillors voted in favour of the application, two councillors voted
against the application, and one councillor abstained from voting.
The Chair used her casting vote to vote in favour of the application, citing
concerns regarding potential appeal costs were the application to be
refused.
RESOLVED That permission be GRANTED subject to revised condition 1 and a
further condition preventing front doors from being glazed.

10

7
(NOTE: Two people spoke in support of the application, stating they were
happy with the proposed plans.)
158.

PLANNING APPEALS
The Legal Services Manager reported:(a) that the following appeals had been dismissed:
50 Kingsfield Gardens, Bursledon, Hampshire SO31 8AY
Appeal against the refusal of planning permission for a raised
decking area constructed of treated 90mm x 90mm posts joined
by 6''x 2'' treated wood and decked and cladded with charcoal
composite decking boards with a wood grain matt finish; the
structure will be finished with a frameless glass balustrade (Ref:
H/21/91331).
This was a delegated decision.
Land behind 100 Station Road, Netley Abbey, Southampton
SO31 5AJ
Appeal against the refusal of permission to fell a sycamore tree
(Ref: T/21/89889).
This was a delegated decision.
RESOLVED That the report be noted.

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE, AND HOUND LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Thursday 1st December 2022
FINANCE MONITORING REPORT
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Committee:
(1)

Approves the allocation of £4,868 from reserves to fund the Walk and Talk
project, delivered by the Country Parks team for a further 12 months;

(2)

Approves the allocation of £865 to install two standard floor mounted Broxap
Derby 120L dual waste bins on Lionheart Way and the footpath on Winchester
Close;

(3)

Approves the allocation of £1,432 from reserves to deliver the Window Gallery
project in February 2023;

(4)

Notes the spend of £68 to fund the replacement of a dragon’s tooth at in
Cunningham Gardens;

(5)

Issues a grant payment of £2,000 from reserves to Hamble Parish Council to
fund new litter bins on Hamble Foreshore;

(6)

Approves the proposed fees and charges for 2023 set out in Appendix A;

(7)

Note the achievements in the local area supported by the LAC, highlighted in
appendix B

Summary
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s developers’
contributions and identifies funding for provision to meet local need and to enhance the
local area. The Local Area Committee’s support is sought to enable their implementation.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e., the Local Authority's general power of
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or
present in its area. S.106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990

13

Strategic Implications
1. The works outlined below contribute to the following strategic priorities:




Local First: where possible taking decisions at a local level about matters
which affect people’s lives, and using contributions from local
developments for local projects;
Excellent Environment for all: creating a sense of place through improved
pathways, additional bins, and air quality;
Enabling health and wellbeing and tackling deprivation; improving
community infrastructure and places where different people can meet and
receive support and services.

Walk and Talk project
2.

Following a successful first year of the Walk and Talk project the Country
Parks team is looking for an allocation of £4,868 to fund a further year of
sessions.

3.

The Country Parks team provide three walks per month in each of the three
Parishes of Bursledon, Hamble-Le-Rice and Hound. The walks average
around 3km and last about 1 hour followed by refreshments. There is also a
strong element of social interaction during and after each walk.

4.

The past year has seen 180 participants attend the Walk and Talk
programme, with an average of ten per walk. They have been very well
received and encouraged residents to take an interest in the local area and
natural environment. It encourages an active lifestyle and gives residents the
opportunity to meet new people.

5.

It is recommended that walk and talk programme is approved and the cost of
£4,868 is taken form reserves.

Replacement of two dual waste bins at Lionheart Way and
Winchester Close

14

6.

The BHH committee has an ongoing programme for extending the coverage
of dual waste bins and replacing worn out bins to help reduce litter across the
local area.

7.

A Local Engagement Officer from Eastleigh Borough Council has visited the
two sites identified, to investigate the need for a standard Broxap Derby 120
litre dual waste bin to be implemented.

8.

The Waste Bin on Lionheart Way is no longer fit for purpose and needs
replacing with a larger, standard waste bin.

Eastleigh Borough Council

9.

The bin located on the footpath linking Winchester Close to New Road in
Netley has been damaged which allows the wind to distribute its contents. It
needs a full replacement to prevent this from happening.

10.

It is recommended that the cost of £865 for the two standard Broxap Derby
120 litre dual waste bins replacements, is taken from the capital budget,
ringfenced for replacement bin’s .

Window Gallery Project
11.

Following Bursledon, Hamble and Hound’s ‘Window Wanderland’ event in
February 2022, the Window Gallery Trail is an amended community project
that aims to bring people together by encouraging residents, local businesses,
and education establishments to decorate their windows on a particular night.
Locations of decorated windows will be registered online to generate a gallery
list for residents to tour on the event nights. It is proposed that the event is
held on Saturday 25th February in Hamble and Sunday 26th February in
Hound and Netley.

12.

The current proposal is to offer one workshop in the community and three
school workshops.

13.

It is recommended that a grant of £1,432 is awarded from the BHH reserve
accounts to support the Window Gallery Project.

Dragons Tooth Cunningham Gardens
14.

It is noted that £68 was spent replacing the missing dragons tooth protecting
green space in Cunningham Gardens. This was authorised as part of
delegated powers in October.

Grant for replacement bins to Hamble Parish Council
15.

Hamble Parish Council have carried out an extensive programme of replacing
bins along Hamble Foreshore with Nexus 2000 dual bins. They have
increased capacity by 100%.

16.

The total cost of these improvements was over £5,500. It is recommended
that a grant of £2,000 is awarded as a contribution towards the works.

Fees and Charges for 2023
17.

This report examines the effects of income received by the Council from fees
and charges levied for services that are the responsibility of Bursledon,
Hamble and Hound Local Area Committee (LAC).

18.

LACs have the discretion to set fees for services devolved to their areas
subject to compliance with the corporate target to generate an additional
minimum yield from fees and charges of 10%.
Eastleigh Borough Council

15

19.

The Service Manager has recommended an increase in the fees and charges
for Hamble Square Car Park from 1 January 2023, with the proposed charges
for the coming year shown in Appendix A.
It is recommended that members approve the proposed fees and charges
outlined in Appendix A

Financial Implication
20.

There are no identifiable, significant financial risks attached to these proposals
as this Committee’s budgets are sufficient to fund the recommendations.

21.

However, it should be noted that if the LAC vote against the proposed fees
and charges in appendix A, the LAC will be responsible for meeting the cost of
the yield shortfall.

Risk Assessment
22.

The recommendations within this report carry a low to moderate risk to the
council. The recommendations above are designed to improve and enhance
community infrastructure, which should they be left to deteriorate, they
become an increased risk physically but also reputationally, which could also
lead to an increased financial burden.

Equality and Diversity Implications
23.

The Equality Act is relevant to the decisions in this report as the decisions
relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or
fostering good relations between different people. The Local Manager and
Assistant Local Area Manager with work with the successful grant applicants
to ensure they are compliant with the equality act.

24.

A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because
while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to conduct a
full EIA.

25.

The equality impact assessment for the walk and talk project will be reviewed
to ensure the activity is still inclusive.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

16

26.

None of the proposals within this report will lead to increases in Greenhouse
Gas/CO2, or damage ecology or the environment.

27.

The new replacement bins will reduce the amount of litter dropped within the
local area. While this clearly improves the look and feel of the public realm it
also reduces pollution to watercourses and hazards to local wildlife and pets.

Eastleigh Borough Council

28.

The continued funding of the walk and talk sessions will encourage more
people travel by foot and also educate local residents about the local flora and
fauna in the area which may lead to renewed appreciation for the local
environment.

Conclusion
29.

The recommendations contained in this report are now submitted for
Councillors’ final approval and are to be funded from the Local Area
Committee’s revenue budget, revenue reserves.

ROSS MCCLEAN
LOCAL AREA MANAGER (BHH)
Date:
07/11/2022
Contact Officer:
Ross McClean
Tel No:
023 8068 3367
e-mail:
ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached:
two
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which
this report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a
material extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any
published works or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential
information.
None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

17

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A
Hamble Car Parking Charges
The annual review of car parking charges in Hamble Square car park has been
undertaken. It is expected that yield increases by a minimum of 10.1% in 2022
Charges were increased for the first time in three years in 2018 and they have
remained unchanged since then. Following a review of the parking charges it has
been decided to charge a flat rate of £1 per hour in the car park and for short stays
of half an hour 50p
The permit charges will remain unchanged.
Table 1. Proposed Parking Charges in Hamble
First ½ hour
Up to one hour
Up to two hours
Up to three hours
Up to four hours

Current
Free
£0.80
£1.60
£2.20
£2.90

Proposed
£0.50
£1.00
£2.00
£3.00
£4.00

Residents Parking Scheme
The permits are valid in on-street areas designated for permit holders. They are also
valid in the Square Car Park and on-street parking bays where there is a time limit
on parking if signs specify that permit holders are exempt (e.g., 2 hours, no return
within 3 hours or permit holders').
Permit charges
1st Permit - £100
2nd Permit - £100

19

This page is intentionally left blank

Bursledon, Hamble-Le-Rice & Hound Local Area News

Pre School Grant for Storage
shed
In September 2022, The Local
Area Committee awarded a grant
of £1000 to fund a new shed at
Long Oak Pre School in
Bursledon. This has been hugely
appreciated and will help prolong
the life of their outdoor
resources as well as keeping the
area tidy and safe for the
children.

Bursledon Surgery – Daytime
GP Provision
When proposals were
announced in early 2021 that
traditional day time GP
provision was to be removed
from Bursledon Surgery, Cllr
Tonia Craig, and Cllr Keith
House, whilst working with
EBC officers, lobbied
government and challenged
the Integrated Care Board
(then known as West Hants Clinical Commissioning Group) to commission GP services in the
daytime for Bursledon residents. After lots of discussion and presenting evidence of need
for the service, West Hants CCG commissioned the delivery of daytime GP provision through
the Eastleigh Southern Parishes Network. The service began on October 1st, 2022.

21

BHH Wayfinding Project
The BHH wayfinding project
is nearing completion. Now
named ‘Hamble Peninsula
Trails’ The marker posts
have been sent to be
galvanised with the hope to
have them installed around
Christmas.

The Mercury Library &
Community Hub
The Mercury Hib are
currently supported with a
£2,000 annual grant from
BHH LAC. One of the
activities offered at the
Mercury is Quilling. They
were recently awarded The
Silver Salver for ‘Excellence
in quilling’ for their quilled
wreath and sympathy cards.
On Saturday 15th of October, they raised a total of £203.50 for the charity Sing4fun by holding a
coffee morning and plan to hold more in the new year.

22

Agenda Item 8
BHH – Bursledon, Hamble and Hound Local Area Committee Thursday 1 December
2022.
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

F/22/93701
Clare Martin
Thursday 25 August 2022
Barncroft, Farm Close, Hamble-le-Rice, SO31 4RZ
Magnus & Cailah Leask
Conversion of boat storage building to form 1no. one
bedroom dwelling with car parking, amenity space, cycle
and bin storage, landscaping and boundary treatment
(revision of refused planning application F/22/92654).

Recommendation:

Subject to:
i)

Securing contributions towards the Solent
Recreation Mitigation Strategy and New Forest
Recreational Strategy.
To Delegate back to the Executive Head of
Planning and Economy in conjunction with The
Chair, Vice Chair and Ward Councillors to
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION with the
following conditions:

CONDITIONS AND REASONS
1

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with
the following plans referenced: 20-3198-110RevP8, 20-3198-111RevP6, 203198-112RevP5, 20-3198-113RevP1 & 8371/01
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the
date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

3

The development hereby permitted shall not commence for a period of at least
21 days from the date of the decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 28I(6) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
(as amended) as this permission is being granted otherwise than in accordance
with the advice of Natural England.

4

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted shall match in type, colour and texture those
used on the existing building, unless otherwise stated on the approved plans.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship between the new
development and the existing in order to preserve the character and
appearance of the Hamble Conservation Area.

23

5

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until evidence that the
dwelling has a predicted mains water consumption of no more than 110
litres/person/day has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To provide adaptable and sustainable dwellings.

6
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until evidence
showing that mitigation is in place to offset the impact of increased nitrates from
the development on the River Solent Special Protection Area has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. A vesting
certificate is acceptable evidence for the Eastleigh Borough Council nitrate
mitigation scheme.
Reason: To accord with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017 (as amended).
7

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the parking area,
cycle and bin storage and garden has been provided in accordance with the
approved plans. The parking area shall thereafter be permanently retained and
used only for the purpose of accommodating private motor vehicles incidental to
the enjoyment of the dwelling house as a residence.
Reason: To make provision for off street parking for the purpose of highway
safety.

8

No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place during the
construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to
Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings.

9

No vegetation clearance shall occur on site during the bird nesting season
[between 1st March & 31st August] unless supervised by an appropriately
qualified ecologist.
Reason – To prevent harm to breeding birds.

10

The existing hedge along the south and east site boundary (as marked on the
approved site layout plan drawing 20.3198.112 Rev P5) shall be retained at a
height of 2m for the life time of the development.
Reason: To protect the residential amenity of the occupiers of the dwelling and
to preserve the character and appearance of Hamble Conservation Area.
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a
timely manner.
Note to Applicant: In the unlikely event of any bats being found during
demolition or construction, all work must stop immediately, and Natural England
must be informed. Additional information is available on the Bat Conservation

24

Trust website at https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-building-withbats/ive-found-a-bat-during-works
Note to Applicant: Biodiversity enhancements should be incorporated into the
development.
- A bat brick or a swift nest box may be appropriate. The Bat Conservation Trust
recommends installing a bat brick/box at least 4 m above the ground, away
from artificial light sources, sheltered from strong winds and exposed to the
sun for part of the day, facing south, south-east or south-west.
(https://www.bats.org.uk › our-work › putting-up-your-box)
- Swift nest boxes are best positioned under the eaves or on walls facing
north, northeast or north-west out of direct sunlight, five metres above the
ground, with clear adjacent airspace so swifts can access them in a highspeed direct flight.
(https://www.swiftconservation.org/Nestboxes%26Attraction.htm)
- The proposed brick wall should include hedgehog holes at the base (of
13cm by 13cm).
___________________________________________________________________
Report:
This application has been referred to Committee because Cllr Jarvis lives
close to the application site.
Description of Application
1. The application is to convert the existing storage building into 1no. one
bedroomed dwelling with a garden on the western side next to Farm Close.
The proposal also includes two car parking spaces within the rear
courtyard and bin and cycle storage for the new dwelling.
2. Please note that the application was originally submitted with a first floor
study, two dormer windows and an air conditioning system. Amended
plans have been received removing these elements from the scheme and
so they do not form part of the current proposal.
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
3. The site is a single storey building located at the western end of a terraced
row of 5no. two storey houses. The application building was originally
constructed as the bin/ cycle store for the properties at Admiralty Walk.
Along the northern edge of the building is the access to a small rear car
parking area, with garages for some of the neighbouring dwellings. In front
of the building is an overgrown area enclosed by high hedging along its
boundary with Farm Close.
4. The site is within an existing residential area on the outer edge of Hamble
Conservation Area. To the immediate south of the site is a key pedestrian
route into Hamble Village Centre.

25

Relevant Planning History
5. The current proposal follows a number of refused applications (and a
certificate of lawfulness) to convert the existing storage building into
various alternative uses. The most relevant planning applications relate to
converting the existing building into an independent dwelling and a
summary of each application is provided below:
Planning Application F/07/59787 (two bed dwelling)
6. The application sought to convert the building into a two bed dwelling with
two car parking spaces within the rear courtyard, a garden on the corner of
Meadow Lane/ Farm Close and a communal bin collection point. The
application was refused, and later dismissed on appeal, the main reasons
being:
 The development’s poor living conditions, particularly the relationship
between the two bedrooms and the rear parking area; the bedroom
and lounge windows abutting an area of public open space; and lack
of security and privacy provided by the garden being at the front of
the building. The Inspector noted that as a two bedroom property, the
building would likely accommodate a small family and so the garden
would not be suitable.


The front garden as the only private amenity space is out of keeping
with the rest of the estate and any garden paraphernalia or
boundary screening would likely be inappropriate for its setting.

Planning Application F/18/84270 (two bed dwelling)
7. This application was also for a two bed dwelling with a similar layout to the
previously refused scheme (F/07/59787). However, a new entrance feature
had been created so that the residents would not step straight out of their
front door into the rear parking area. Under this application the communal
bin collection point was removed in favour of a larger garden for the
dwelling. The application was refused on the same grounds as the
previous scheme with an additional reason for refusal relating to the loss of
the existing bin collection point for the Admiralty Row dwellings.
Certification of Lawful Application for boat equipment storage
(LDC/19/86058)
8. It is understood that the building was purchased in 2010 and since this time
has been used for storing boat equipment, rather than a communal bin/
cycle store. A certificate of lawfulness was applied for in September 2019
to allow the building to be legally recognised as boat equipment storage,
but this was not issued as the time the building had been used for boat
storage was about six months under the required ten-year period.
Planning Application F/20/88507 (one bed dwelling)

26

9. This application reduced the size of the dwelling from two to one
bedrooms. As a one bedroomed dwelling it would now likely accommodate
a single occupant or couple, rather than a family, and so the hedged
garden was considered acceptable. The proposal also included a new bin/
cycle store for the new dwelling.
10. However, the one bedroom was positioned on the northern side of the
property next to the access and security gate for the shared rear parking
courtyard. As such this bedroom would be heavily impacted by noise and
fumes from vehicular movements, some of which would be for
neighbouring residents and could be at unsociable hours. The application
was refused due to the impact of vehicular noise upon the living
accommodation detrimental to the future residents. It was also refused due
to the loss of the bin storage facility for the existing Admiralty Row
dwellings.
11. The application went to appeal and was dismissed with the Inspector
upholding the reason for refusal relating to the position of the bedroom and
subsequent noise impact. However, the Inspector noted that the building
had not functioned as a bin/ cycle store for an extended period and
therefore did not consider the lack of replacement bin storage facility as a
reason for dismissing the appeal.
Planning Application F/21/91243 (one bed dwelling)
12. The application was a revised submission of F/20/88507, in which the
location of the bedroom was moved to the southern side of the property.
However, this resulted in the bedroom being positioned next to the turning
head for Meadow Gardens and as such would potentially be impacted by a
greater number of vehicular movements compared to the previous
application (F/20/88507). The application was refused on this basis.
Planning Application F/22/92654 (one bed dwelling)
13. The last application was to move the position of the bedroom to a newly
created first floor within the existing roof slope of the building with the
addition of two small dormer windows on the western elevation. The
ground floor would then be used as a large living area.
14. However, the application was refused as there was not sufficient space
within the property’s eaves for the bedroom, and the small room located
under the tiled roof was likely to overheat during the summer months. As
such it was not considered to provide suitable living accommodation.
Full Planning History
Reference
Z/38314/002

Description
Construction of garaging, cycle store, bin store
and access from Farm Close, provision of

Decision
Permitted (July 04)

27

Reference

Description

Decision

garaging and access off Satchell Lane and
alterations to cycleway
F/05/53763

Re-siting bin and cycle store

Refused (June 05)

F/07/59787

Conversion of storage building to form 1no. two
bed dwelling

Refused (June 07)
Appeal Dismissed

F/08/62246

Change of use from storage building to class D1 Refused (April 08)
usage

F/08/62245

Change of use from storage building to class B1 Refused (April 08)
usage

F/08/62244

Change of use from storage building to class A2 Refused (April 08)
usage

LDC/19/86058 Lawful Development Certificate for existing use
as a private storage of boats and equipment.

Certificate not
issued (Sep 19)

F/18/84270

Change of use from storage to two bedroom
dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space

Refused (Feb 19)

F/20/88507

Change of use from storage building to 1no.
one bedroom dwelling

Refused (Nov 20)
Dismissed at
Appeal (April 21)

F/21/91243

Conversion of boat equipment storage building
to form self-contained 1 bedroom dwelling

Refused (Sep 21)

F/22/92654

Conversion of boat equipment storage building
to form self-contained 1 bedroom dwelling

Refused (Apr 22)

Representations Received
15. Five letters of objections have been received, which are summarised as
follows:
Residential Amenity and Noise




New development would create poor living accommodation (in term of light,
outdoor space and Internal space standards).
Loss of privacy - from rear door looking into downstairs toilet of 7 Admiralty
Row.
Parking in courtyard would create noise, fumes and disturbance for
neighbours using their gardens.

Highways, Access and Parking

28






The proposed high wall and hedging reduces visibility at access, which is
within 15 metres of the junction of Meadow Lane and Farm Close.
Highway safety impact of additional cars using the site access.
Parking would cause a hazard for vehicles exiting their garages and people
taking out their bins.
The dwelling’s rear access door opens out onto courtyard into the path of
any vehicles exiting or entering the double garage.

Ecology


There has been siting of bats and it is unclear where their nest is.

Other







The building should remain as a bin and cycle store as originally intended.
There have been at least seven applications to develop this small purposebuilt storage building. All applications and appeals have been rejected so
the planning position must surely be well established now.
Strong and consistent local community opposition to the development.
7 Admiralty Row has a legal right of way across the courtyard.
Highlighting previous behaviour of applicant.
Overdevelopment & would put strain on existing infrastructure.

16. The comments relating to the first floor study, dormer windows and air
conditioning unit has been taken out as these no longer form part of the
application.
Planning Officer Response
17. The objections raised are noted and will be considered in the assessment
section along with the following responses:






The Local Planning Authority has a duty to consider all planning
applications submitted against the prevailing planning framework.
The planning considerations do not include protection of a legal right of
way, which has been secured under separate legislation.
Planning decision can not take into account the volume of objections (only
the content of the objections letters) nor the previous behaviour of the
applicant.
The proposal is for a single dwelling and as such will have a negligible
impact on existing infrastructure.
The proposal uses existing car parking spaces within the rear car park and
the small increase in vehicular movements would not have an
unacceptable impact on adjoining residents. Furthermore, the restricted
size of the courtyard means that vehicles will have to manoeuvre at low
speeds and so not pose a significant risk to other courtyard users.

Consultation Responses (summarised)
18. Environmental Health - Comment

29

19. The layout is acceptable because the bedroom has been moved to the
centre of the property and less sensitive rooms are next to the access and
turning head.
Built Heritage Consultant - No objection
20. Good to see a tree added to the garden for the benefit of both the
occupants and the local environment,
Ecology – No objection
21. While there are records of bats in the area the site photos show that the
roof is in good condition and therefore I don’t see any potential bat roost
features. The response goes onto provide ecological advice, which has
been incorporated into the suggested conditions/ advice notes.
Natural England – Objection
22. The Council’s Habitat Regulations Assessment has been reviewed by
Natural England, who consider that the proposal will have adverse effect
on the integrity of the New Forest Special Area of Conservation (SAC),
Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar site by way of increased
recreational disturbance. This is because the Applicant intends to use the
Eastleigh Borough Council New Forest Mitigation scheme, which has not
been approved by Natural England.
23. The Applicant also intends to use the Eastleigh Borough Council’s nitrate
mitigation scheme and the Solent recreation mitigation partnership scheme
to mitigate for the increased levels of nitrates and recreational disturbance
caused by the development, which affects the Solent Special Protection
Area. These mitigation schemes are acceptable.
Hamble Parish Council – Objection
24. The Planning Committee considered the amendments to the application. It
welcomed the removal of the first-floor unit and the mechanical extraction
system but still remains opposed to the application.





30

The scheme represents overdevelopment of a space that was not
designed for residential use and offers a poor solution in terms of
internal design.
The proposal removes storage and amenity space from the location
causing bins etc to be placed in the public realm - which in this sensitive
site is unacceptable given this was the purpose of the structure.
It will create additional trip movements in an area where there is already
a high volume of traffic especially at weekends.
The roads are congested and the access in and out of the site on the
corner presents safety issues as a result of parking in the area.

Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site






Within Built-Up Area Boundary
Within Established Residential Area
Within Hamble Conservation Area
Within Solent Mitigation and Disturbance Zone
Within New Forest Mitigation and Disturbance Zone

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036)
Strategic Policies





S1 (Sustainable Development);
S2 (Promotion of New Development);
S3 (Housing Locations);
S8 (Historic Environment).

Development Management Policies













DM1 (General Development Criteria);
DM2 (Environmentally Sustainable Development);
DM3 (Adapting to Climate Change);
DM8 (Pollution)
DM10 (Water and Waste Water);
DM11 (Nature Conservation);
DM12 (Heritage Assets);
DM13 (Transport);
DM14 (Car Parking);
DM23 (Residential Development in Urban Areas);
DM29 (Dwellings with Higher Access Standards);
DM30 (Internal Space Standards).

Supplementary Planning Documents





Quality Places (November 2011);
Residential Parking Standards (January 2009);
Environmentally Sustainable Development (March 2009);
Biodiversity (December 2009);

Planning Policy Framework
25. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. A deliverable 5 year supply of housing within each local

31

authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a tilted balance in
favour of the development applies.
26. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services);
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities
for achieving sustainable development in different areas
Planning Practice Guidance
27. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
28. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6)
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local Planning
Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
Development Plan comprises the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036
and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in
this case). The NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance constitute material
considerations of significant weight.

Principle:
29. While the building was originally intended to store bins and cycles for the
Admiralty Row dwellings, it has not been in this use for an extended
period having been used for boat equipment storage since 2010. The
Local Planning Authority had previously argued that the loss of the
communal storage facility resulted in bins being left out on the pavement
determinantal to the character of the Conservation Area (under
application F/20/88507). However, the Appeal Inspector dismissed this
argument concluding that the residential change of use would not affect
the current situation as there is no reasonable prospect of this building
being used for bin and cycle storage in the future.
30. The site is located within the urban edge where the principle of the
residential conversion is acceptable, providing the development accords
with the relevant planning policies. The proposed residential conversion
would also make a more efficient use of the site, which is within a
sustainable location next to Hamble village centre. In this regard the
proposal is in line with Policies DM1 & DM23 of the Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan and the provisions of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

32

Living Accommodation
31. The latest three planning applications were to convert the building into a
one bedroomed property. Each of the planning applications were
refused due to the poor quality living accommodation caused by the
position of the bedroom, which is the most noise sensitive room as the
new residents will require a quiet space to sleep.
32. The first application located the bedroom on the dwelling’s northern side
next to the entrance to the parking courtyard and so would have been
affected by vehicular noise from other residents accessing their garages
within the parking courtyard. The next application located the bedroom
on the southern side of the dwelling next to the Farm Close turning head
and so would also be affected by vehicular noise. The last application
located the bedroom in a new first floor area created in the building’s
eaves, which was cramped and prone to overheating in the summer.
33. The current application has addressed these issues by positioning the
bedroom in the middle of the single storey dwelling, away from external
noise sources and providing a reasonable sized room. While the kitchen
/ dinner is next to the courtyard entrance and the living area next to the
Farm Close turning head the use of these rooms would be less affected
by vehicular noise.
34. The proposed dwelling has an internal floor area of 66m2 and
comfortably meets the requirements of Policy DM30 and the nationally
described space standards. The dwelling’s main windows face west
onto its own garden and while the extra lounge and bathroom windows
on the southern elevation look over a public landscaping area these
could be obscure glazed should the new residents decide they want
extra privacy.
35. The proposed garden is of an acceptable size (at least 60% of the
dwelling’s floor space as set out in Quality Places SPD) and is
reasonably private being surrounded by a high hedge/ brick wall. While
unlike the surrounding properties, the garden is located next to Farm
Close it is not uncommon to find this arrangement within residential
areas.
36. Overall, the proposed dwelling is considered to create a reasonable
living environment.
Character and Appearance:
37. The site is located within the Hamble Conservation Area where a higher
level of design is required in line with Policy DM12. The proposed
residential conversion requires very little changes to the external

33

appearance of the building, apart from minor alterations to fenestration
and a new entrance (raised step and rail) that is tucked away in the rear
parking courtyard.
38. The high hedge around the garden boundary is already present on the
site and the proposed high brick wall along the northern side is for a
short section of the garden and will fit in with the existing street scene.
39. As such the proposed residential conversion will not result in significant
changes to the current appearance of the site and will preserve the
character and appearance of the Hamble Conservation Area.
Access, Parking and Transport Matters:
40. The proposed dwelling will use the two existing car parking spaces in
the rear courtyard, which belong to the Applicant. The residential use of
the dwelling will likely result in a small increase in vehicular movements,
compared to the existing storage use.
41. The car parking spaces use the existing site access onto Farm Close,
where there are a number of other garages and accesses. While it is
noted that the front hedge/ wall will slightly restrict visibility to the south,
the site access is onto a small residential cul-dec-sac where vehicles
speeds will be slow due to the road layout. The proposal is therefore not
considered to pose an unacceptable highway safety risk.
Residential Amenity
42. The proposed residential conversion involves no extensions or
significant alterations to the existing building. The property’s main
windows face onto its own garden or the adjacent footpath. It is
therefore considered that the proposal will not have an unacceptable
impact on the amenity of existing residents by way of a loss of light,
outlook or overlooking.
Ecology
43. The building does not contain potential bat roost features and no
objection has been raised by the Ecology Officer.
Impact on the Special Policy Area
Nitrates
44. Natural England have advised that the increase in wastewater from new
housing developments within the borough is having a detrimental effect on
the quality of water entering the Solent catchment area through
nutrification. As such all development for additional housing are required to
reach nutrient neutrality (ensuring that development does not add to
existing nutrient burdens), in order to meet the requirements of the

34

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).
The proposed development is required to achieve nutrient neutrality for
nitrogen.
45. To mitigate for the increase in nutrients the developer intends to purchase
credits from the Eastleigh Borough Council scheme, which takes land out
of agricultural uses and creates recreational spaces thus reducing the
nutrient output of the land. The developer will need to provide evidence of
this mitigation via a pre-occupation condition.
Recreational Disturbance
46. The site is within both the 5.6km catchment area for the Solent Special
Protection Area and Ramsar Site and the 13.8km catchment area for the
New Forest Special Protection Area. It is recognised that new housing
developments within these catchment areas are likely to result in
additional visitors to these protected sites. In order to mitigate for this
impacts the developer has agreed to pay a contribution towards the
Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy (which manages visitors to the
coastline) and the Council’s New Forest Mitigation Strategy (which
provides Suitable Alternative Natural Green Spaces within the borough
and funds a ranger post in the New Forest National Park). No
contributions have been received to date, and these will need to be paid
upfront before planning permission could be issued.
47. A habitat regulations assessment has been undertaken by the Local
Planning Authority for the proposed development, which outlines the
likely impacts on the special protection areas and proposed mitigation.
This has been reviewed by Natural England and an objection raised as
Natural England has not approved the Council’s New Forest Mitigation
Strategies. A dialogue is continuing between the two organisations,
however the Local Planning Authority, as competent authority, consider
that this scheme provides sufficient mitigation.
48. Should the application be approved, with Natural England’s objection,
then the Council will need to advise Natural England of its decision and
give them a 21-day notification period. As such a condition will be
imposed to ensure that that development does not start before the 21day notification period has been completed, as required by Section
28(6) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981).
The Council’s Five-Year Housing Land Supply:
49. Also of note is the latest position on the Government- required 5 year
housing land supply. The published figure for August 2022 confirms that
the Council currently has a 5.1 year supply. The addition of urban
windfall sites, such as the proposal, makes a small but important
contribution to the to the council’s housing land supply.

35

Other material considerations
Sustainability Measures and Climate Change:
50. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and
services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c)
ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality
as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of
action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by
the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
51. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
The NPPF, development plan and adopted local plan policy do not set this
as a specific target, but it is a material consideration to be considered
alongside all other material considerations. In any case addressing climate
change is a core part of the NPPF and local plan policy.
52. The NPPF aims for the need for housing to be met, and policy S2 of the
Local Plan sets a target for 14,580 dwellings to be provided by 2036. The
NPPF, Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Local Plan and energy and water
elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development SPD
require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, climate
change and energy use.
53. When considering the impact of climate change, the proposed
development would be expected to be resilient to the potential effects of
climate change and is expected to reduce/limit impacts on climate
emissions as a result of the development or its use.
Equalities Implications:
54. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:a. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due
regard to the need to:
i. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
b. ii. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

36

c. iii. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
55. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Conclusion
56. The principle of the residential conversion is acceptable and planning
policy encourages the efficient use of sites within sustainable locations.
The property will provide a reasonable living accommodation with external
amenity space, car parking and bin storage.
57. The proposal requires very little external alterations and would preserve
the character and appearance of the Hamble Conservation Area. The
proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety,
residential amenity or ecology.
58. The application is therefore recommended for permission.

37

59.

38

Agenda Item 9
BHH - Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee –
1st December 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

F/21/91037
Gary Osmond
Wednesday 7 July 2021
1 ROPE WALK, HAMBLE-LE-RICE, SOUTHAMPTON,
SO31 4HB
Andros Loizou
Conversion from restaurant to 2no. residential dwellings
(1no. two-bedroom and 1no. four-bedroom) with two-storey
rear extension, addition of pitched roof to existing single
storey rear projection, elevational alterations and internal
changes to facilitate conversion.
PERMIT

___________________________________________________________________

CONDITIONS AND REASONS:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with
the following plans numbered: L01A, 1799-01D, 1799-02C & 1799-03A.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the
date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

3

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced for a period of at
least 21 days from the date of the decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 28I(6) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
(as amended) as this permission is being granted otherwise than in accordance
with the advice of Natural England.

4

No works to the rear extension hereby approved shall start until details of the
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the
amenities of the area.

5

No excavation, demolition or development related works shall take place on site

39

until a detailed method statement, including details of the proposed 'tree-bridge'
system's installation, as per British Standard 5837:2012 (Trees in Relation to
Design, Demolition and Construction – Recommendations), has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The approved
method statement must be adhered to in full and may only be modified subject
to written agreement from the LPA.
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of
the amenity of the locality.
6

No development shall start until details of the size, species, location and
proposed time of planting of a replacement tree has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and tree planting shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To conserve the character of the area.

7

No development shall start until details of a sustainable drainage system have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
details shall include a timetable for its implementation and a management/
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development [including the
arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any
other arrangements to secure the effective operation of the sustainable
drainage system throughout its lifetime]. The system shall be implemented and
thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage for the development.

8

The approved Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) by 'Ross
Consulting', dated '14th April 2022 Rev A 18.07.22' shall be followed in full
throughout the construction and fitting out process.
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality
and to protect designated nature conservation sites.

9

No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place during the
construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to
Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings.

10

No burning of materials obtained by site clearance, or any other source shall
take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out process.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

11

40

No vegetation clearance shall occur on site during the bird nesting season
[between 1st March & 31st August] unless supervised by an appropriately
qualified ecologist.

Reason: To prevent harm to breeding birds.
12

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood
Risk Assessment (‘FRA - 1 Rope Walk, Hamble, Hants’, ref: 21084, Issue 1,
dated 15/09/2021, produced by Aqua Callidus Consulting) and the following
mitigation measures it details:
a) Finished floor levels on the ground floor shall be set no lower than 3.50
metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD), as specified in paragraph 12.4.
b) There should be no sleeping accommodation on the ground floor of
either unit, as specified in paragraph 12.5.
c) Each dwelling shall have an independent high level direct access from
the first floor to the rear garden area to provide a safe, dry means of
access in the event of a flood, as specified in paragraph 12.6.
These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements.
The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter
throughout the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants and ensure a means of safe, dry access in the event of a flood.

13

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with
the recommendations outlined in the Ecological Assessment by Peach Ecology
dated July 2020.
Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity.

14

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a mitigation
package addressing the additional nutrient inputs arising from the development
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
Such a mitigation package shall address all of the additional nutrient loading
upon protected European sites from the development and shall allow the Local
Planning Authority to ascertain on the basis of the best available scientific
evidence that such additional nutrient loading will not have an adverse effect on
the integrity of those European Sites, having regard to the conservation
objectives for they are designated. The mitigation package shall be
implemented in full and evidence of this provided to the Local Planning
Authority in writing prior to first occupation of the development.
Reason: To mitigate the nitrates impacts arising from the development upon the
European protected Solent Complex in accordance with the requirements of the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.

15

Bin and cycle storage shall be provided before occupation of each dwelling in
accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until the bin &
cycle storage has been constructed in accordance with the approved details
and thereafter retained and kept available.

41

Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of on-site facilities.
16

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the parking area
has been provided in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter
permanently retained and used only for the purpose of accommodating private
motor vehicles incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouses as residences.
Reason: To make provision for off street parking for the purpose of highway
safety.
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a
timely manner.
Note to Applicant: It is requested that the building works are carried out
considerately to minimise disruption to the occupiers of the neighbouring
properties. The council operates a code of best practice, which is available on
the council's website www.eastleigh.gov.uk by following the links to Planning,
Guidance on the process, scroll down to Guidance on Aspects of the Planning
& Construction Process and select considerate builders’ advice note.

Report:
1. This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Craig,
Jarvis, Manning and Rich.
Description of Application
2. The application seeks consent for the change of use of the premises from
restaurant back to its original residential use. This would consist of splitting
the building into two properties, providing a two bedroom and a four
bedroom dwelling. Physical works to the building would include the
construction of a two storey rear extension, alterations to existing raised
decking and formation of a communal amenity/parking courtyard to the
rear.
3. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical
assessments:
•
•
•
•
•

42

Design and Access Statement
Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Ecological Assessment
Flood Risk Assessment
Viability Statement

4. The proposal has been screened out under the Town and Country
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England) Regulations 2011
due to the size and nature of the proposed development.
5. Screening under the Habitats Directive was required due to the
development’s impact in combination with other development upon the
Solent and New Forest SPAs.
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
6. The application site sits on the corner of High Street/The Quay and Rope
Walk and fronts onto the public hard overlooking the Hamble River. It
consists of ‘Quay House’ and ‘Leonard House’, both early 19thC two storey
red brick properties, with Leonard House also including some attic
accommodation. Both buildings are Grade II Listed Buildings and share a
rear walled yard area, which is accessed from High Street through a
narrow pair of gates. The buildings were last used as a restaurant and
have been extended to the rear, including a covered raised area of
decking. The rear yard area is generally cobbled but does include a
number of modest trees and soft landscaping around the edges.
7. The site lies in the heart of the Hamble Conservation Area and forms part
of the historic core of the village. It also lies within the area designated as
Hamble’s Local Centre, where a range of shops, pubs, restaurants, cafes
and other facilities are based. The area also includes a considerable
number of residential flats and dwellings.
8. Immediately to the north of the site is a narrow, stepped pedestrian
passageway which runs between the site and ‘The King and Queen’ Public
House. To the east is Rope Walk, a narrow but busy lane which provides
access to the ‘Royal Southern’ and ‘Royal Air Force’ Yacht Clubs, as well
as a number of residential dwellings. Also to the east is ‘The Quay’, a small
public square with a public slipway into the river. To the south-east is a
public car park on the Foreshore and access to the public quayside. To the
south, on the opposite side of High Street is ‘The Bugle’ Public House and
to the west are a number of residential dwellings and B&Bs.
Relevant Planning History
9. This planning application is accompanied by a concurrent listed building
application (L/21/91048), which assesses the physical alterations proposed
to the building/s rather than the change of use aspect of the planning
application.
10. Prior to the present applications, various consents have been granted
relating to the use of the building/s as a restaurant:
•

C/31701/005/00 - Retention of decking and repositioning of pergola in
rear garden – Permit Sept 2000

43

•

C/31701/003/00 - Construction of single storey rear extension, insertion
of two windows in ground floor south elevation, addition of balustrade
and one window in north elevation and one roof light in east elevation –
Permit Jul 1999

•

C/31701/001/00 - Minor external alterations incorporating new rear
entrance and associated landscaping – Permit Dec1993

•

Z/19720/005/00 - Change of use of part of ground floor from office to
restaurant, preparation and storage – Permit May 1982

•

Z/19720/003/00 - Change of use of part ground floor to restaurant –
Refuse Jul 1981

Representations Received
11. A total of 5 representations have been received highlighting the following
issues and concerns:
-

Loss of a commercial business to residential
Loss of light and outlook caused by the proposed rear extension
Removal of trees
Disturbance and access issues during construction
Potential loss of trade due to construction works
Parking
Requests that a time limit for completion of the works is applied

Consultation Responses
12. Built Heritage Consultant - No objection: This is a prominent building with
unrivalled views of the quay and the river. The proposals provide an
opportunity to rectify a number of inappropriate additions and alterations to
the rear elevation. The proposed split into two dwellings is logical and
appears to be a virtual return to its original form. The proposals will
preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the conservation
area.
13. Trees – No objection, subject to the proposed replacement tree being
planted and further tree protection details being conditioned, including the
raised car parking deck.
14. Ecology – No objection: Recommendations of submitted ecological
assessment are sound and should be implemented in full. No tree removal
within bird nesting season. Updated CEMP is acceptable and should be
conditioned.
15. Natural England – Objection: The development will have an adverse
impact upon the integrity of New Forest Special Area of Conservation
(SAC), Special Protection Area (SPA), Ramsar.

44

16. Mitigation measures proposed in relation to water quality and the Solent
SPAs are acceptable, as is the updated CEMP.
17. Environment Agency – No objection provided recommendations of the
approved Flood Risk Assessment are followed in full and conditioned.
18. HCC Highways – No objection: The change from restaurant to residential
will result in a reduced trip rate, which would be beneficial to the local
highway network. Whilst the existing vehicular access does not meet
modern standards, vehicle speeds along High Street are very low, so
unlikely to cause any highway safety issues. EBC should assess the need
to meet local parking standards.
19. HCC Archaeologist – Although the proposal is located within the historic
core of the village and has some archaeological potential, in view of the
small scale of the proposal ground works I would not raise any
archaeological issues.
20. Hamble Parish Council – Objection: Concern at the loss of a further
business, particularly in such a prominent position. Proposals will not meet
necessary parking standards, forcing use of public carparks and reducing
spaces for visitors. Vehicular access to the site is poor and may require
significant alterations to provide adequate sightlines, which would be
detrimental to the historic character of the village and the listed building.
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site
•
•
•
•
•
•

Within Built-up Area Boundary
Within Designated Local Centre
Within Designated Conservation Area
Listed Building Grade II
Within HRA Screening Area
On the edge of Tidal Flood Zone 3

Development Plan
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036
21. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 was adopted by Full Council
on 25th April 2022. The most relevant policies are:
Strategic Policies:
• S1 (Delivering sustainable development);
• S2 (Approach to new development);
• S8 (Historic Environment);
Development Management Policies:
• DM1 (General criteria for new development);
• DM2 (Environmentally sustainable development);

45

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

DM5 (Managing Flood Risk);
DM6 (Sustainable surface water management and watercourse
management);
DM11 (Nature conservation);
DM12 (Heritage Assets);
DM13 (General development criteria - Transport);
DM14 (Parking);
DM22 (Changes of use in retail frontages in Eastleigh town centre,
district centres, local centres and neighbourhood parades);
DM23 (Residential development in urban areas);
DM29 (Dwellings with higher access standards);
DM30 (Internal space standards for new residential development); and
DM36 (Community, Leisure and Cultural Facilities)

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
•

Policy 15 – Safeguarding of Mineral Resources.

Supplementary Planning Documents
•
•
•
•
•

Quality Places (November 2011);
Residential Parking Standards (January 2009);
Environmentally Sustainable Development (March 2009);
Biodiversity (December 2009);
Hamble-le-Rice Conservation Area Appraisal (August 2008)

National Planning Policy Framework
22. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. A deliverable 5 year supply of housing within each local
authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a tilted balance in
favour of the development applies. Agent of Change principles protect
existing businesses.
23. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services);
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities
for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

46

National Planning Practice Guidance
24. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background:
25. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan comprises the policies of the Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan 2016-2036 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013
(which is not applicable in this case). The NPPF and the Planning Practice
Guidance constitute material considerations of significant weight.
Conservation Area:
26. The site also lies within a Conservation Area and Section 72(1) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states:
“In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in the
Conservation Area of any powers (under the Planning Acts), special
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of that area”.
Listed Buildings:
27. The proposal affects a Listed Building and section 66(1) of the Planning
(Listed Building & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states:
“In considering whether to grant planning permission for development
which affects a Listed Building or its setting, the Local Planning Authority …
shall have regard to the desirability of reserving the building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses”.
Policy & Principle:
28. The application site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of
development is considered acceptable, with any formal approval being
based upon the proposals being in accordance with the relevant local plan
policies.
29. The site also lies within Hamble village’s local centre, where Policy DM22
is relevant. This policy relates to changes of use within town, district, and
local centres, as well as neighbourhood parades. Whilst this policy allows
conversion of upper floors to residential use, it does not encourage
conversion of ground floor uses to residential as it would result in the loss

47

of commercial and/or community or leisure/cultural uses. However, DM22
does allow the loss of an existing use provided a number of criteria are
met. These are:
a) the new use retains an active ground floor frontage;
b) it does not adversely affect amenity of an area or the appearance of
the frontage; and
c) it does not have a negative impact on the provision of services or on
the sustainability of a key shopping area.
30. Whilst a residential use would not usually be considered as an ‘active use’
for a commercial area, in this instance the original domestic form of the
building and its fenestration already impede the relationship between the
inside and external public realm, being very different to that provided by an
open glazed shopfront. In relation to a) above therefore, it is not considered
there would be any noticeable difference, other than the level of activity,
which at present is zero given the restaurant has been shut for a year or
more. Equally, it is not proposed to alter the external appearance of the
building – other than the addition of the rear extension – so would meet the
requirements of part b).
31. In relation to c), the policy sets out further criteria which must be met to
satisfy this element. These are that proof must be provided to demonstrate
that there is no demand for the use which would be lost; or that the
proposals would provide over-riding community benefits; or that it would
enhance the vitality and viability of the centre.
32. Looking first at the final two parts of these criteria, whilst provision of
additional housing in the area will provide some benefits, it could not be
argued that this would be an over-riding community benefit. Equally, the
provision of two more households would provide other businesses with
opportunity for more custom, but again it would be difficult to argue that the
loss of the existing restaurant use and change to residential would
enhance the vitality and viability of the centre.
33. With regards to the first part of these criteria, whilst the comments from the
Parish Council and some members of the public in relation to Hamble
being a popular location which can support restaurant and leisure uses are
noted, evidence has been provided in support of the application to
demonstrate that whilst the location may be ideal, the internal layout of the
building is not suitable to be able to successfully run and manage a
modern restaurant business. Given eight different businesses, including a
successful local restaurant, have been unable to make the business viable,
it would strongly suggest that the building is indeed unsuitable for a viable
commercial use. That being the case, consideration of allowing a change
of use which would result in the loss of a local centre use should be given
in order to bring the building back into use.
34. In addition to being within Hamble’s local centre, the site is also within the
Hamble-le-Rice Conservation Area, as well as being a Grade II Listed

48

Building. As such Policy DM12, which relates to heritage assets is relevant.
This policy is aimed at protecting heritage assets by ensuring proposals for
them or new development which may affect them is appropriate and will
not result in any unacceptable harm. It also requires that proposals achieve
a high standard of design which respects and complements the character
and qualities of the asset, as well as helping to secure its long-term future
maintenance and management where necessary.
35. Other policies of note are: DM2 – Environmentally sustainable
development; DM29 – Dwellings with higher access standards; and DM36
– Community, leisure and cultural facilities. Whilst ideally the requirements
of DM2 and DM29 should be met, given the age of the building and its
listed status, it may not be possible to do so without adverse harm being
caused to this important heritage asset. Policy DM36 relates to the
protection of community facilities, which can include public houses.
However, in this instance the site was a restaurant and has never been
used as a public house. As such, Policy DM36 is not relevant, although the
concerns expressed as to the loss of the existing business use are noted.
36. In principle therefore, whilst the proposed change of use may not fully
accord with the policy requirements set out above, on balance, and in the
interests of bringing an important heritage asset back into use, it is
considered that the change to an entirely residential use is acceptable in
this instance.
Sustainable Development:
37. Section 2 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that the purpose of the
planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development, which can be summarised as meeting the needs of the
present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their
own needs.
38. Each of the three dimensions of sustainable development is considered
below.
39. National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that all
planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on the
Environment. Details elsewhere in this report set out the Climate Change
and Environmental implications of this application and their proposed
mitigations.
Economic Sustainability:
40. Section 2 of the NPPF, states that the objective of economic sustainability
is “to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by
ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places
and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of
infrastructure;”

49

41. Also of relevance is section 7 of the NPPF ‘Ensuring the vitality of town
centres’. This states that “Planning policies and decisions should support
the role that town centres play at the heart of local communities, by taking
a positive approach to their growth, management and adaptation.” Part of
this is to “allow a suitable mix of uses (including housing)” and “recognise
that residential development often plays an important role in ensuring the
vitality of centres and encourage residential development on appropriate
sites.”
42. The main concern raised, principally by the parish, is the resulting loss of
the restaurant. This is understandable given the prominent position of the
building and its importance for the wider conservation area. However,
evidence has been provided demonstrating that use of the building as a
restaurant is not a viable proposition. The principal reason being that the
building and its internal layout is not well suited to a restaurant use,
consisting of a number of small rooms, doorways, stairs and level changes,
given it was originally built as a pair of dwellings. These physical
constraints simply make it very difficult to practically manage a restaurant
and also severely restrict the number of covers which can be
accommodated. If the internal space could be opened up, this may assist
but is not something that would be deemed acceptable given the listed
building status.
43. Currently the empty building provides no economic benefit to the locality,
and whilst the concerns at the loss of the existing restaurant use are noted,
the information submitted in support of the application demonstrates that
although the location of the site may be ideal, the internal layout and
constraints of the building are far from ideal for running a viable modern
restaurant business. These same constraints are also likely to limit scope
for alternative commercial or retail uses, which raises the strong possibility
that the building may remain empty and unused for a considerable period,
leading to further deterioration and negative impact on the locality.
44. The proposed change of use back to its original residential use would
however bring the building/s back into use, thereby safeguarding its future,
as well as bringing in new residents who can make use of neighbouring
businesses, thereby supporting the vitality and viability of the wider local
centre, together with supporting construction jobs during the physical works
to the building. As such, it is considered that there would be an economic
benefit to the proposed scheme and therefore would be economically
sustainable.
Social Sustainability:
45. In relation to social sustainability, section 2 of the NPPF states that the
objective is “to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to
meet the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering welldesigned, beautiful and safe places, with accessible services and open

50

spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities’
health, social and cultural well-being;”
46. As well as providing two dwellings, the proposed conversion back to
residential use would help to safeguard an important and prominent Listed
Building and heritage asset, thereby helping to preserve a piece of local
history for the foreseeable future. As such, it is considered that there would
be a social benefit to the proposed scheme and that it would therefore be
socially sustainable.
Environmental Sustainability:
47. Section 2 goes on to state that the objective of environmental sustainability
is “to protect and enhance our natural, built and historic environment;
including making effective use of land, improving biodiversity, using natural
resources prudently, minimising waste and pollution, and mitigating and
adapting to climate change, including moving to a low carbon economy.”
48. There are a number of different components to Environmental
Sustainability, including consideration of site-specific planning matters and
the impacts of the development on its surroundings, which are considered
below under the relevant subheadings.
Form, Layout & Design
49. The most significant alteration to the existing building is the proposed
construction of a two storey rear extension to the northern end of the
western rear elevation. A significant portion of this extension already exists
at ground floor level, resulting in the extension only being 1.5 metres
deeper. The first floor of the extension effectively replaces an existing
covered decking area, albeit that the appearance, height and physical
scale of that proposed is greater than the existing lightweight structure.
Notwithstanding, the removal of the existing rather unattractive decking
and its replacement with a far more sympathetically designed brick and tile
extension is considered to be an aesthetic improvement. Other external
alterations are limited to removal of signage and the revision/insertion of
windows within the rear elevations. Internally, works are limited to the
removal of walls to later additions and blocking up doorways to divide the
existing building into two dwellings.
50. Whilst these works are being considered as part of the concurrent listed
building application, they are nonetheless considered to be appropriate and
respectful to the building and to accord with the requirements of Policies
DM1 and DM12 of the local plan.
Access, Parking & Highways
51. The site has an existing vehicular access onto High Street through a set of
gates within the boundary wall, which itself is listed by virtue of being
connected to the main building. Concern has been expressed that the

51

access is poor and cannot provide adequate sightlines when exiting, which
may require alterations to the wall having to be made, which would be
detrimental to the character of the conservation area.
52. Whilst narrow, the access is wide enough for a car to pass through,
although it is accepted that visibility is below the usual standards required.
However, in this instance traffic speeds are very low, so it raises no
significant highway safety concerns, as there would be adequate time for
vehicles to stop and pedestrians to alter course. That being the case, there
is no need for the existing boundary wall to be altered in any way.
53. Concerns have also been raised that the scheme does not provide
adequate off-road parking to serve the development. It is accepted that the
two in-curtilage spaces proposed falls short of the five which would be
required by the Council’s ‘Residential Parking Standards’ SPD (2 spaces
for the two bedroom dwelling and 3 for the four bedroom dwelling),
however, it is not always possible to meet the standards set out,
particularly in more historic areas which were never designed with car
ownership in mind. That being the case, some degree of compromise is
required, and a balance must be struck between strictly adhering to
standards verses ensuring the development works and the character of the
area is protected. In this instance, whilst the provision of just two spaces is
not ideal, it is something that future occupiers of the dwellings will be aware
of, and there is alternative public parking elsewhere in the village should
occupiers choose to use it. Although the proposed parking provision does
fall short of standards, on balance it is not considered that this could
reasonably be used as a reason to refuse the application.
54. In terms of highway impact, as has been highlighted in Hampshire
Highways’ response, the trip rates associated with the proposed residential
use will be significantly less than those of the former restaurant use.
Residential Amenity & Impact Upon Neighbouring Uses
55. In terms of the amenity of future occupiers, the two dwellings will meet the
necessary space standards and are laid out in such a way as to meet flood
risk requirements. Externally, there would be a shared courtyard area,
which would also be used for parking. However, both dwellings would have
access to individual terraces/patio areas which would provide useable
outdoor amenity space. The site is also in very close proximity to Hamble
Foreshore, thereby allowing a smaller than standard amenity space to be
acceptable. In terms of privacy, light and outlook, these again are all
acceptable, with the dwellings also having direct views of the river.
56. With regards to neighbouring uses, most are commercial in nature. As
such, conversion of the building into residential use is not expected to
cause any issues. Equally, any future occupiers will be aware of the
proximity of neighbouring uses, such as ‘The Bugle’ and ‘The King and
Queen’ Public Houses and should expect a degree of disturbance given
the nature of the immediate surrounding area.

52

57. An objection to the construction of the two storey rear extension has been
raised by the owner of the neighbouring King and Queen Public House in
relation to loss of light to a side window. Whilst there would be a degree of
light loss, this window is a secondary window to a bar area which is also lit
by large front windows, so would not be sufficient to warrant a reason for
refusal, notwithstanding a commercial use does not have the same degree
of protection in this respect as a residential property would.
58. Some concern has been raised in relation to disturbance and access
during construction. Whilst these concerns are noted, the physical works
proposed are relatively minor and suitable amenity protection conditions
and advisory notes can be included as part of the planning approval.
Heritage, Street Scene & Area Character
59. Given external alterations to the current building would be minimal, other
than the rear extension which is positioned to the rear and not prominent
from main public vantage points, impact upon the street scene would be
negligible. Equally, given the restaurant has not been open for over a year,
conversion to a purely residential use will have no adverse impact upon the
general character of the surrounding area.
60. As stated above, the building is Grade II listed, as well as being within the
heart of the Hamble Conservation Area in a very prominent position visible
from the river. As such it is important to ensure the building is maintained in
an appropriate fashion. The best way to achieve this is to bring the building
back into a viable use. Whilst loss of the restaurant is unfortunate, bringing
the building back into its original domestic use will be a more viable use
which will ensure this important historic building is appropriately maintained
and looked after.
Trees & Nature Conservation
61. The proposals do require the removal of a Bay tree to provide on-site
parking. Whilst preferable to retain trees wherever possible, particularly
within a conservation area where they provide an important part of the
area’s character, in this instance it is considered acceptable. The tree is
not a significant specimen and provides only a modest contribution to the
street scene. Notwithstanding, a replacement tree in a more suitable
location is proposed and will be conditioned, as will protection measures to
ensure remaining trees are not damaged both during and after construction
works.
62. In terms of nature conservation, the Council’s Ecologist is happy with the
recommendations of the supporting ecological assessment, which includes
a number of biodiversity enhancement features. They are also happy with
the updated Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), which
will ensure that nesting bird, bats and the nearby river are not harmed
during works. These documents are conditioned.

53

Impact on Special Policy Areas
Nitrates:
63. Natural England have advised that the increase in wastewater from new
housing developments within the borough is having a detrimental effect on
the quality of water entering the Itchen and Solent catchment areas
through nutrification. As such all developments for additional housing are
required to reach nutrient neutrality (ensuring that development does not
add to existing nutrient burdens), in order to meet the requirements of the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).
64. The application site will use the Peel Common wastewater treatment
works, which discharges into The Solent. As such the proposed
development is required to achieve nutrient neutrality for nitrogen. To
mitigate for the increase in nutrients the developer intends to purchase
credits from the Eastleigh Borough Council scheme, which takes land out
of agricultural uses and creates recreational spaces, thus reducing the
nutrient output of the land. The developer will need to provide evidence of
this mitigation via a pre-occupation condition.
Recreational Disturbance:
65. The site falls inside the 5.6km buffer zone for the Solent SPA and also
within the 13.8km catchment area for the New Forest Special Protection
Area. It is recognised that new housing developments within these
catchment areas are likely to result in additional visitors to these protected
sites. In order to mitigate for this impact the developer has paid
contributions towards the Solent Recreational Disturbance Strategy and
the Council’s New Forest Mitigation Strategy (which provides Suitable
Alternative Natural Green Spaces within the borough).
Habitats Regulations:
66. A Habitat Regulations Assessment has been undertaken by the Local
Planning Authority for the proposed development, which outlines the likely
impacts on the special protection areas and proposed mitigation. This has
been reviewed by Natural England, who whilst satisfied with the mitigation
measures proposed in relation to water quality and the Solent SPAs,
together with the submitted Construction Environmental Management plan
(CEMP), an objection has been raised in relation to recreational impact
upon The New Forest designated sites.
67. Whilst this concern is noted, Eastleigh Borough Council as the competent
authority for the purposes of Section 28I (6) of the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 (as amended), are content that adequate mitigation in this
respect can be provided through the Council’s New Forest Mitigation
Scheme, contributions to which have already been provided by the
applicant.

54

Flooding & Drainage
68. The site sits on the edge of Tidal Flood Zone 3, meaning that the potential
impact from flooding needs to be considered. Whilst the development itself
will not lead to increased flood risk, measures do need to be taken to
ensure the safety of future occupiers. As such a Flood Risk Assessment
has been provided to support the application which has been reviewed and
approved by the Environment Agency who have recommended conditions
be included as part of any planning approval.
69. It is unclear how existing surface water drainage is dealt with and if the
proposed scheme will utilise the same system. However, this is something
that can be confirmed via a suitably worded condition. Construction
drainage is dealt with as part of the submitted CEMP which has been
approved by the Council’s Ecologist and is conditioned.
Sustainability Measures and Climate Change
70. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and
services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c)
ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality
as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of
action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by
the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
71. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
The NPPF, development plan and adopted local plan policy do not set this
as a specific target, but it is a material consideration to be considered
alongside all other material considerations. In any case addressing climate
change is a core part of the NPPF and local plan policy. The need to
support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment for
the adopted local plan, as is an assessment of climate impacts.
72. The NPPF aims for the need for housing to be met, and policy S2 of the
Local Plan sets a target for 14,580 dwellings to be provided by 2036. The
NPPF, Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Local Plan and energy and water
elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development SPD
require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, climate
change and energy use.
73. When considering the impact of climate change, the new development
would be expected to be resilient to the potential effects of climate change
and expected to reduce/limit impacts on climate emissions as a result of

55

the development or its use. No specific information has been provided as
to what measures or systems are proposed in this instance, however,
scope to include features such as photovoltaic panels to the roofs, green
roofs, electric charging points, etc. are limited as these features could
adversely impact the structure, character and appearance of the heritage
asset. This is not to say that other measures could not be incorporated
provided they are sympathetic to the building. These could include, for
example, enhanced insulation, and energy efficient fittings and appliances.
Planning Obligations / Considerations
74. Given the development proposes a total of six units, it falls under the
threshold for when planning obligations can be secured.
Other Material Considerations:
The Council’s Five-Year Housing Land Supply:
75. Also of note is the latest position on the Government required 5 year
housing land supply. The published figure for August 2022 confirms that
the Council currently has a 5.1 year supply. The addition of urban windfall
sites, such as the proposal, makes a small but important contribution to the
to the council’s housing land supply.
Equalities Implications:
76. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:“A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
i.
ii.
iii.

eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.”

77. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Conclusion:
78. Whilst the loss of the restaurant use is regrettable, this needs to be
balanced against the benefits of the proposal. Presently the building is
empty and in need of refurbishment and maintenance. The best way to
achieve this is to bring the building back into use and have it occupied.
Conversion back to its original domestic use is a viable option in this

56

respect, and would safeguard the future of the building, which is a listed
building and an important heritage asset in a very prominent position within
the conservation area. As such, the application is recommended for
approval subject to the conditions set out above.

57

58

Agenda Item 10
BHH - Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee –
1st December 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

L/21/91048
Gary Osmond
Wednesday 7 July 2021
1 ROPE WALK, HAMBLE-LE-RICE, SOUTHAMPTON,
SO31 4HB
Andros Loizou
Listed Building Consent: Conversion from restaurant to 2no.
residential dwellings (1no. 4-bedroom and 1no. 2-bedroom)
with two-storey rear extension, addition of pitched roof to
existing single storey rear projection, elevational alterations
and internal changes to facilitate conversion.
GRANT LISTED BUILDING CONSENT

___________________________________________________________________

CONDITIONS AND REASONS:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with
the following plans numbered: L01A, 1799-01D, 1799-02C & 1799-03A.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the
date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Planning [Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas] Act 1990.

3

No works to the rear extension hereby approved shall start until details of the
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the
amenities of the area.
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a
timely manner.
Note to Applicant: It is requested that the building works are carried out
considerately to minimise disruption to the occupiers of the neighbouring

59

properties. The council operates a code of best practice, which is available on
the council's website www.eastleigh.gov.uk by following the links to Planning,
Guidance on the process, scroll down to Guidance on Aspects of the Planning
& Construction Process and select considerate builders’ advice note.

Report:
1. This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Craig,
Jarvis, Manning and Rich, and relates to a concurrent planning application
(F/21/91037)
Description of Application
2. The application seeks listed building consent for alterations to the building
as part of the change of use of the premises from restaurant back to its
original residential use. This would consist of splitting the building into two
properties, providing a two bedroom and a four bedroom dwelling. Physical
works to the building would include the construction of a two storey rear
extension, alterations to existing raised decking and formation of a
communal amenity/parking courtyard to the rear.
3. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical
assessments:
•
•
•

Design and Access Statement
Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Ecological Assessment

Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
4. The application site sits on the corner of High Street/The Quay and Rope
Walk and fronts onto the public hard overlooking the Hamble River. It
consists of ‘Quay House’ and ‘Leonard House’, both early 19thC two storey
red brick properties, with Leonard House also including some attic
accommodation. Both buildings are Grade II Listed Buildings and share a
rear walled yard area which is accessed from High Street through a narrow
pair of gates. The buildings were last used as a restaurant and have been
extended to the rear, including a covered raised area of decking. The rear
yard area is generally cobbled but does include a number of modest trees
and soft landscaping around the edges.
5. The site lies in the heart of the Hamble Conservation Area and forms part
of the historic core of the village. It also lies within the area designated as
Hamble’s Local Centre, where a range of shops, pubs, restaurants, cafes
and other facilities are based. The area also includes a considerable
number of residential flats and dwellings.

60

6. Immediately to the north of the site is a narrow, stepped pedestrian
passageway which runs between the site and ‘The King and Queen’ Public
House. To the east is Rope Walk, a narrow but busy lane which provides
access to the ‘Royal Southern’ and ‘Royal Air Force’ Yacht Clubs, as well
as a number of residential dwellings. Also to the east is ‘The Quay’, a small
public square with a public slipway into the river. To the south-east is a
public car park on the Foreshore and access to the public quayside. To the
south, on the opposite side of High Street is ‘The Bugle’ Public House and
to the west are a number of residential dwellings and B&Bs.
Relevant Planning History
7. This planning application is accompanied by a concurrent planning
application (F/21/91037), which deals with the proposed change of use and
impact of the proposed alterations and extension upon neighbouring
properties and the wider Hamble Conservation Area.
8. Prior to the present applications, various consents have been granted
relating to the use of the building/s as a restaurant:
•

C/31701/005/00 - Retention of decking and repositioning of pergola in
rear garden – Permit Sept 2000

•

C/31701/003/00 - Construction of single storey rear extension, insertion
of two windows in ground floor south elevation, addition of balustrade
and one window in north elevation and one roof light in east elevation –
Permit Jul 1999

•

C/31701/001/00 - Minor external alterations incorporating new rear
entrance and associated landscaping – Permit Dec1993

•

Z/19720/005/00 - Change of use of part of ground floor from office to
restaurant, preparation and storage – Permit May 1982

•

Z/19720/003/00 - Change of use of part ground floor to restaurant –
Refuse Jul 1981

Representations Received
9. A total of 7 representations have been received highlighting the following
issues and concerns:
-

Loss of a commercial business to residential
Loss of light and outlook caused by the proposed rear extension
Removal of trees
Disturbance and access issues during construction
Potential loss of trade due to construction works
Parking
Requests that a time limit for completion of the works is applied

61

Consultation Responses
10. Built Heritage Consultant - No objection: This is a prominent building with
unrivalled views of the quay and the river. The proposals provide an
opportunity to rectify a number of inappropriate additions and alterations to
the rear elevation. The proposed split into two dwellings is logical and
appears to be a virtual return to its original form. The proposals will
preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the conservation
area.
11. HCC Archaeologist – Although the proposal is located within the historic
core of the village and has some archaeological potential, in view of the
small scale of the proposal ground works I would not raise any
archaeological issues.
12. Hamble Parish Council – Objection: Concern at the loss of a further
business, particularly in such a prominent position. Proposals will not meet
necessary parking standards, forcing use of public carparks and reducing
spaces for visitors. Vehicular access to the site is poor and may require
significant alterations to provide adequate sightlines, which would be
detrimental to the historic character of the village and the listed building.
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site
•
•
•
•
•
•

Within Built-up Area Boundary
Within Designated Local Centre
Within Designated Conservation Area
Listed Building Grade II
Within HRA Screening Area
On the edge of Tidal Flood Zone 3

Development Plan
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036
13. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 was adopted by Full Council
on 25th April 2022. The most relevant policies are:
Strategic Policies:
• S1 (Delivering sustainable development);
• S8 (Historic Environment);
Development Management Policies:
• DM1 (General criteria for new development);
• DM12 (Heritage Assets);
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
•

62

Policy 15 – Safeguarding of Mineral Resources.

Supplementary Planning Documents
•
•

Quality Places (November 2011);
Hamble-le-Rice Conservation Area Appraisal (August 2008)

National Planning Policy Framework
14. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. A deliverable 5 year supply of housing within each local
authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a tilted balance in
favour of the development applies. Agent of Change principles protect
existing businesses.
15. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services);
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities
for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
National Planning Practice Guidance
16. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background:
17. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan comprises the policies of the Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan 2016-2036 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013
(which is not applicable in this case). The NPPF and the Planning Practice
Guidance constitute material considerations of significant weight.
Listed Buildings:

63

18. The proposal affects a Listed Building and section 66(1) of the Planning
(Listed Building & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states:
“In considering whether to grant planning permission for development
which affects a Listed Building or its setting, the Local Planning Authority …
shall have regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting
or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses”.
Policy & Principle:
19. The relevant policies in this instance are S8, DM1 and DM12 of the
adopted local plan, which look specifically at impact upon heritage assets.
20. Policy S8 is a strategic policy which sets out the Council’s approach to
conserving and enhancing the Borough’s heritage assets which include
nationally and locally listed buildings, and conservation areas. Policy DM12
looks more specifically at the impact of proposals upon individual heritage
assets and states: “Development of a heritage asset or within its setting will
be permitted provided it does not harm or detract from the significance or
special interest of the asset, and sustains and enhances its special
character and qualities. The more important the asset, the greater the
weight that should be accorded to this criterion.” This policy is aimed at
protecting heritage assets by ensuring proposals for them, or new
development which may affect them, is appropriate and will not result in
any unacceptable harm. It also requires that proposals achieve a high
standard of design which respects and complements the character and
qualities of the asset, as well as helping to secure its long-term future
maintenance and management where necessary.
21. In principle therefore, the proposed change of and physical alterations and
additions to the building are acceptable.
Impact on Listed Building
22. The most significant alteration to the existing building is the proposed
construction of a two storey rear extension to the northern end of the
western rear elevation. A significant portion of this extension already exists
at ground floor level, resulting in the extension only being 1.5 metres
deeper. The first floor of the extension effectively replaces an existing
covered decking area, albeit that the appearance, height and physical
scale of that proposed is greater than the existing lightweight structure.
Notwithstanding, the removal of the existing rather unattractive decking
and its replacement with a far more sympathetically designed brick and tile
extension is considered to be an aesthetic improvement. Other external
alterations are limited to removal of signage and the revision/insertion of
windows within the rear elevations. Internally, works are limited to the
removal of walls to later additions and blocking up doorways to divide the
existing building into two dwellings.

64

23. These works are being considered to be appropriate and respectful to the
building and to accord with the requirements of Policies DM1 and DM12 of
the local plan.
24. As stated above, the building is Grade II listed, as well as being within the
heart of the Hamble Conservation Area in a very prominent position visible
from the river. As such it is important to ensure the building is maintained in
an appropriate fashion. The best way to achieve this is to bring the building
back into a viable use. Whilst loss of the restaurant is unfortunate, bringing
the building back into its original domestic use will be a more viable use
which will ensure this important historic building is appropriately maintained
and looked after.
Sustainability Measures and Climate Change
25. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and
services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c)
ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality
as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of
action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by
the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
26. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
The NPPF, development plan and adopted local plan policy do not set this
as a specific target, but it is a material consideration to be considered
alongside all other material considerations. In any case addressing climate
change is a core part of the NPPF and local plan policy. The need to
support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment for
the adopted local plan, as is an assessment of climate impacts.
27. Whilst scope for externally mounted systems such as photovoltaic panels
are limited, due to the potential visual harm to the listed building and
conservation area, other measures such as energy efficient lighting,
appliances, heating systems, etc. could be incorporated.
Equalities Implications:
28. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:“A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:

65

i.
ii.
iii.

eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.”

29. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Conclusion:
30. Whilst the concerns raised in relation to the loss of the restaurant use are
noted, this is a matter to be considered as part of the concurrent planning
application. This listed building application instead looks at the acceptability
of the physical alterations and additions to the building required to allow the
proposed change of use, which in themselves are considered acceptable
and are supported by the Council’s Heritage Consultant.
31. Presently the building is empty and in need of refurbishment and
maintenance. The best way to achieve this is to bring the building back into
use and have it occupied. Conversion back to its original domestic use is a
viable option in this respect, and would safeguard the future of the building,
which is an important heritage asset in a very prominent position within the
conservation area. As such, the application is considered to accord with
the requirements of Policies S8 and DM12 of the adopted local plan in that
it “sustains and enhances its special character and qualities” of the
heritage asset and will help to “secures the long-term future maintenance
and management of the asset”. As such, it is recommended that listed
building consent be granted subject to the conditions set out above.

66

67

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 1 December 2022
TRO, VARIOUS ROADS BURSLEDON, HAMBLE & HOUND AREA
Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendation(s)
It is recommended that
(1)

A Traffic Regulation Order is made, the effects of which are to introduce waiting
restrictions in:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
m)

(2)

Beaulieu Road,
Coach Road and Coach Road (Crescent shaped spur),
Deanfield Close,
Flowers Close,
Friarscroft,
Lowford Hill,
Norbury Gardens,
Oakwood Way,
Satchell Lane,
Sedgemead,
Station Road,
Sydney Avenue and Sydney Avenue (Crescent shaped spur) and
Westwood Road.

introduce waiting and parking restrictions in:
a)
b)

Coach Road
Grantham Avenue

Summary
A proposal to introduce waiting and parking restrictions in various roads in Bursledon,
Hamble and Hound was advertised on 2nd September 2022. Representations were
received both in support of, and objection to, the restrictions. This report summarises the
comments received and recommends how to proceed.

69

Statutory Powers
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.
Legal Agreements
Agency Agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council
dated 10 September 2019
Note
The above agency agreement with Hampshire County Council will be terminated on 31 st
March 2023.

Strategic Implications
1.

Creating an excellent environment for all by removing obstructive and
inconsiderate parking, and by providing time-limited parking places outside
local shops and residential premises.

Introduction
2.

Various roads in the Local Area have been investigated in response to
reported problems such as obstructive parking. Site investigations were
undertaken to assess the issues being experienced by road users, and to
decide on appropriate measures to mitigate the issues.

3.

This report details the comments received during the public consultation
period. The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, before
making a decision to introduce, amend or withdraw the Traffic Regulation
Order.

Detail
4.

Consultation was undertaken by means of a Public Notice on the Eastleigh
Borough Council website, published in the Hampshire Independent
newspaper, and posted on street furniture in the vicinity of the proposed
restrictions. Plans showing the proposed restrictions are in Appendix 1.

5.

Twenty-one representations were received, six in relation to Flowers Close,
two in relation to Sydney Avenue, five in relation to Sedgemead, one in
relation to Deanfield Close, five in relation to Station Road, two in relation to
Beaulieu Road, one in relation to Coach Road, and one in relation to
Oakwood Way. The representations are summarised below, along with the
Engineer’s response. The full (redacted) text of the representations can be
found in Appendix 2.

6.

70

Eastleigh Borough Council

Comment

Engineer’s response

One resident supports Double
Yellow Lines (DYL) at junction of
Flowers Close with Sydney Avenue
but objects to DYL further in Flowers
Close. Requests more restrictions in
Beaulieu Road and asks for an
extension to the DYL at the junction
of Sydney Avenue at Hamble Road
junction.

The proposal for DYL further into
Flowers Close results from
complaints of pavement parking.
Previously proposed restrictions to
prevent parking on the verge/footway
were objected to and therefore
Councillors chose not to introduce
the restriction.
Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other roads
would need to be considered by
HCC.

Another resident supports the DYL
at the junction of Flowers Close with
Sydney Avenue, but objects to DYL
further along Flowers Close,
requests residents permit parking
and asks, ‘has there been an
environmental assessment for the
proposals?’

The proposal for DYL further into
Flowers Close results from
complaints of pavement parking.
Previously proposed restrictions to
prevent parking on the verge/footway
were objected to and therefore
Councillors chose not to introduce
the restriction.
Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other roads
would need to be considered by
HCC.

Another resident supports DYL at
the junction of Flowers Close with
Sydney Avenue, but objects to DYL
further along Flowers Close from No
1.
The resident requests additional
restrictions needed in Beaulieu
Road

As stated in item 10 below, the
proposals should not increase
Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage
the ecology or the environment.
The proposal for DYL further into
Flowers Close results from
complaints of pavement parking.
Previously proposed restrictions to
prevent parking on the verge/footway
were objected to and therefore
Councillors chose not to introduce
the restriction.
Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other roads
would need to be considered by
HCC.

Eastleigh Borough Council

71

A further two separate residents
support the DYL at the junction of
Flowers Close with Sydney Avenue,
but object to DYL further along
Flowers Close.

The proposal for DYL further into
Flowers Close results from
complaints of pavement parking.
Previously proposed restrictions to
prevent parking on the verge/footway
were objected to and therefore
Councillors chose not to introduce
the restriction.

Another resident objects to the DYL
in Flowers Close as a result of
concerns over loss of street parking.

The proposal for DYL further into
Flowers Close results from
complaints of pavement parking.
Previously proposed restrictions to
prevent parking on the verge/footway
were objected to and therefore
Councillors chose not to introduce
the restriction

Four residents of Sedgemead
support the restrictions as
advertised. Three requested, in
addition, limited waiting time
restriction for the parking on gravel
in Victoria Road near the RVCP
entrance. One of these requests
Sign "NO access to RVCP" at
entrance to Sedgemead.

The gravel parking area is not Public
Highway, but restrictions can be
proposed with the landowner’s
agreement.
Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other
roads/areas of land, would need to
be considered by HCC.
The provision of a “No Access” sign
is out of the scope of this TRO but
can be considered by the LAC.

72

One resident of Sedgemead objects
to the proposals citing lack of street
parking for visitors.

There appears to be ample room to
allow visitor parking within the
property curtilages of those premises
likely to be affected by the proposals.

A resident of Deanfield Close
objects to the removal of existing
restrictions.

The resident had misunderstood the
proposals. It was thought that the
existing lines were being
permanently removed. We have
explained about having to legally
revoke existing restrictions in order to
replace them with a longer length.
Therefore the objection is resolved.

Five residents object to the
proposals in Station Road on only
one side as this may lead to
increased speeds. One of these

The double yellow lines are proposed
as a result of complaints of
obstruction to the bus service,
caused by parked cars on both sides

Eastleigh Borough Council

also requested traffic calming, one
requested staggered parking on
both sides, and one resident
requested a double yellow line
outside no 58 near bend.

of the road. The speed of traffic can
be monitored and, if necessary,
request that measures be considered
to address any road safety issues
that result. The parking outside no.
58 is not considered a road safety
issue as this section is on a straight
section of the road.

One resident requested additional
restrictions in Beaulieu Road near
Hamble Lane

Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other
roads/areas of land, would need to
be considered by HCC.

One resident requested that instead
of restricting parking in Coach Road,
Norbury gardens and Grantham
Avenue, the green areas in these
streets be used for residents to
park.

Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other
roads/areas of land, would need to
be considered by HCC.

One resident in Sydney Avenue
requests consideration of a
residents parking scheme.

Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other
roads/areas of land, would need to
be considered by HCC.

One resident in Oakwood Way
requests extending the proposals to
no 70 Oakwood Way

Following the termination of the
Agency Agreement, any requests for
additional restrictions in other
roads/areas of land, would need to
be considered by HCC.

Financial Implications
7.

The costs of the TRO and associated road markings are funded from the
core TRO Programme budget as part of the “Various roads” allocations, at a
cost of approximately £5000.

Risk Assessment
8.

If the proposals are not implemented, it is likely that the issues with
obstructive parking will continue in these roads. Due to the termination of the
Agency Agreement, these schemes will now be evaluated alongside other
competing Countywide priorities, any intervention is likely to take longer.

Equality and Diversity Implications

Eastleigh Borough Council

73

9.

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. In summary the EqIA shows that:
(a)

There are minor positive impacts in these roads by prohibiting waiting
at the kerbside, thereby discouraging drivers from obstructing
junctions, footways and driveways

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
10.

The proposals should not increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology
or the environment.

Conclusion
11.

The proposals have due regard to the requirement of S122 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act, by securing the expeditious, convenient and safe movement
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway. The proposed waiting
restrictions attracted objections, comments and expressions of support. This
report takes into consideration all the representations received and
recommends that the committee approves the introduction of the restrictions
as amended following advertising.
ANDREW PLEDGE
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ENGINEER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

22nd November 2022
Andrew Pledge
07764 882193
andy.pledge@eastleigh.gov.uk
2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None

74

Eastleigh Borough Council

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

75

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

77

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

79

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

81

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2022)

Rev:

83

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

85

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

87

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2021)

Rev:

89

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Scheme:

Title:

Date:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

Date:

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019622 (2022)

Rev:

91

This page is intentionally left blank

Status:

Rev:

Date:

Date:

Checked by:

Chkd:

Rev:

Neighbourhood
Services

Description:

Project No.:

Drawn by:

TRANSPORTATION AND ENGINEERING
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES
Eastleigh House,
Upper Market Street, Eastleigh,
Hampshire. SO50 9YN
Telephone:(023) 8068 8000
Email:engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk

Scheme:

Title:

Scale @ A4:

Drawing No.:

93

This page is intentionally left blank

COMMENTS RECEIVED TO THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (BURSLEDON, HAMBLE & HOUND)
(AMENDMENT NO. 13) ORDER 2022 CONSULTATION
Flowers Close
As a resident of Flowers Close I wish to raise comments and partial objection to the proposed traffic
parking restrictions proposed for Flowers Close, and also those proposed for the closely associated
roads of Sydney Avenue and Beaulieu Road.
Flowers Close
The stated reasons for these plans are invalid for Flowers Close whereby it is proposed to place a
restriction around the entire left side from entry from Sydney Avenue including the entire
hammerhead turning area.
Having lived in this road for over 20 years this proposed TRO detail is solving a problem that simply
does not exist. By its instigation several valuable parking positions will be lost, yet this cul-de-sac has
functioned perfectly well in regard to the hammerhead turning area. This would reduce amenity for
those with drop kerbs where the only ever cars that park across these are those very residents
themselves. Certainly there has never been any incidents of road users being unable to turn in the
hammer head area, even with several cars parked half up in the non drop kerb areas.
Flowers Close - Junction entry with Sydney Avenue
We would fully support the placement of parking restrictions at the access to Flowers Close.
In particular residents of other nearby roads use this area for parking, with too many obstructing
safe access and egress from Flowers Close. Indeed our suggestion would be to limit parking on the
north west side to 15m (increase from the proposed 10m), and on the south east side right along to
the next 90 degree left turning, by 1 Flowers Close driveway entrance.
Sydney Avenue junction with Hamble Lane
To entirely restrict parking on at least one side of the junction for a distance of at least 25m.
When turning from Hamble Lane right into Sydney Avenue one is often faced with a partial
obstruction and with effectively no where to proceed to if another vehicle is headed out of Sydney
Avenue towards Hamble Lane. This leaves a severe risk a following vehicle could rear end you whilst
waiting. Various residents here do park dangerously most days.
Beaulieu Road
Whereas we recognise restrictions are being lengthened slightly, this does not go anywhere to
addressing the sheer volume of cars trying to park most evenings, often leaving virtually no gap for
safe passage in either direction, and for which a fire engine would simply never get through.
Overflow traffic from Hamble Club makes the situation worse when events are taking place.
Our suggestion is alternate parking restrictions right along the length of Beaulieu Road to ensure
safe passage is always possible.

95

It is noted these restrictions would only apply 8pm to 8am. These parking problems at the junctions
and in particular Beaulieu Road become worse at nights and weekends.
Thank you for considering these comments.

Sedgemead
Dear Madam/ Sir,
I am writing to you to acknowledge that we have no objections over the traffic order proposals, as
mentioned above, amendment 1 &13 in Sedgemead.
Would it be possible that there was a time restriction on how long people are able to park on the
gravel area of the shore front, before the entrance of the park on Victoria Road? And that a “No
Entrance to the Country Park” sign is placed at the bottom of Sedgemead, in a similar fashion to
Hound Road at the other gate for the country park?

Sedgemead
To Whom it may concern,
I am in full agreement with the parking and traffic restrictions put forwards for Sedgemead.
Implementation will bring order to this traffic congested residential area.
Having lived here for 35 years and seen a disagreeable increase in traffic which is impacting on
surrounding areas.
Points of Note.
1. Vehicle users park continually in Sedgemead cul-de-sac, obstructing driveways and impeding
owners access to their properties. There have been occasions where vehicles have parked in private
driveways offering resistance when being asked to move.
2. Sedgemead cup-de-sac has been used for toilet facilities by public.
3. To implement double yellow lines on both sides of Victoria Rd, commencing from the junction of
Station Rd to Victoria Country Park. Currently only one side(North) has double yellow lines. The rd is
too narrow to accommodate parking along it.
4. Any informative signage to utilize existing poles/posts.
5. The beach/gravel parking area opposite Sophie’s Pond would benefit by limited time parking. It’s
often used by park visitors for extended periods. People wishing to visit the pond or small beach
area should have access to this close proximity parking area.
Sedgemead
We write to give our wholehearted support to the proposed parking restrictions in Sedgemead
SO31. Parking across our driveways and on the pavement and obstructing this narrow road has been
a problem in the 15 years we have lived here. We also suffer continuous traffic, searching for a space
– an unpleasant reality in a short, narrow close with only 6 houses.
We have several points to make in relation to Sedgemead road and the area:
1. Could the accompanying signs make use of existing lampposts, or the fence that runs the
entire road length, rather than erect new signs?

96

2. The existing no waiting at any time double yellow lines in Victoria Rd north side are
insufficient. The unrestricted south side has continuous car parking, especially on busy park
days and weekends. This frequently turns Victoria Rd into a narrow one way street causing
congestion and frustration. It is often difficult to exit Sedgemead and Sedgemead Court as a
result.
3. The gravel parking area off Victoria Rd, opposite Sophie’s Pond and next to Royal Victoria
Park entrance is often used for long stay parking by park visitors. In our view, far better to
assign this area to limited stay, eg an hour; long enough to walk the dog or feed the ducks
opposite.

Deanfield Close
It appears the Council is uninformed of what the problem is with Deanfield Close or confused as to
what to do about it. Approximately two (2) years ago the Council added No Waiting at Any time to
Deanfield Close, Southeast from its junction with Hamble Lane for an approximate distance of 55
metres for the very reasons outlined in Statement of Reasons (AMENDMENT NO 13) ORDER
2022. Now it is proposed to remove it. Recently the Council has been denied access to pick up
waste and recycle in AMY GARDENS because of parked vehicles on Deanfield Close, Northwest.
To allow vehicles to park again on Deanfield Close, Southeast will be in conflict with the reasons as
stated in Statement of Reasons (AMENDMENT NO 13) ORDER 2022. In addition if vehicles are
allowed to park on Deanfield Close, Southeast either they will be parked at the edge of the roadway
which will block access to the Councils large waste and recycle collection trucks. Or vehicles will park
on the pavement which will block the passage of pedestrians. Either way, because Deanfield Close is
so narrow, access may be denied to pick up waste and recycle in AMY GARDENS.
I propose, to make it simple, to add No Waiting Any Time to Deanfield Close, Northwest only. And
leave Deanfield Close, Southeast as it is.

Station Road
My main concern [I have lived on Station Road, both sides actually since 2003] is that when parking
is all on one side and particularly if this is enforced then we have a huge problem with speeding
drivers, and even drivers mounting the curb at speed if somebody opens a car door and they swerve
- I’ve seen this happen a number of times. There are also a lot of speeding drivers going up the road
at night.
I have been speaking with neighbours and we would really like to work with you to elevate the
parking/blocking issue and have a couple of ideas about staggering the parking restrictions along the
road, thus causing causing a chicane effect, when parking both sides happens it slows traffic down
thus dealing with the speeding issue we have. Unfortunately because some idiots do double park
because they are 'just popping into a shop’ it has pushed the need for action, it’s a shame really that
we can’t just have the area monitored and tickets issued for those that park badly.
I [and some neighbours] would love the opportunity to discuss idea with you - is it possible to have a
meeting please?
if it’s only objections/comments but email then as above please confirm the deadline.

97

Additional email received:
I briefly outlined my concerns about having double yellow lines the length of one side of Station
Road in an earlier email, I have lived on this part of the road since 2003, I was at number 52, then 42
and now 47, I have generally worked from home, used the village amenities so have lots of
experience with this part of the road!
I do appreciate that there have been numerous comments and complaints over the years from other
local residents, I have seen some on the Netley Abbey Community page and have witnessed a
number incidents myself; on many occasions busses or other vehicles have been unable to get
through this part of the road, however, each traffic incident I have witnessed has been caused by
double parking and not because there is parking on both sides. In general parking on both sides has
been brilliant at slowing down the traffic flow but not stopped it, thus actually making the road
much safer.
In general when there is parking on one side only, particularly early evening, then we do have quite a
problem with speeding traffic. This is more so during the evenings when some cars and motor bikes
race around the village loop that is Station Road, Victoria Road, Grange Road and Ingleside.
I don’t know a definite answer, but I would strongly suggest that if yellow lines were staggered and
parking bays for residents and half an hour waiting were marked out with parking in bays only then
we could manage the parking without the risk of somebody being hurt [or worse] by a speeding
driver. For example; could we have parking outside the coop and club on that side, the opposite the
next row of businesses [post office etc] have the bays on the opposite side of the road and then back
to the coop side from say number 46 upwards??
Please may we have a meeting so that residents that live here can be given the opportunity to join in
a discussion, it’s not fair to put us at risk of speeding drivers just to satisfy many drivers who wish to
drive through the heart of the village without the inconvenience of waiting to pass parked cars!!

Flowers Close
We previously objected to the proposed TRO in March 2021, which we include for your reference.
We did not receive a reply to our letter or email, other than to advise that the TRO decision had
been delayed. Therefore we are concerned that our previous objections have not been taken into
account.
We support the proposal to restrict parking at the junction of Flowers Close and Sydney Avenue.
Currently commercial vans and cars, used by residents from Sydney Avenue and Hamble Lane, park
in Flowers Close within meters of the junction, causing a safety hazard for egress and access.
However we are fearful that proposed restrictions to neighbouring streets will undoubtedly make
the south-westward section of Flowers Close become a regular parking area for those affected,
resulting that visitors to Flowers Close will be adversely affected. Should this TRO be agreed, please
consider permit parking for this area.
We do not however support the proposal to restrict parking along Flowers Close. We do however
believe that the rationale stated to facilitate the passage of vehicles on the road is fundamentally
flawed, and the latest TRO will undoubtedly cause issues that currently do not exist.
We request that you read our letter of objection sent in March 2021, which outlines the challenges
that will occur should these proposals be finalised. We draw your attention to the section relating to

98

challenges when parking a vehicle of any size on the road, and not partially on the pavement as
currently happens.

If the TRO affecting Flowers Close were to be approved, I would foresee neighbours removing their
front gardens in favour of additional parking, but with ‘green’ issues now firmly in the public eye, the
ecological impact and rationale for this requirement would attract attention. Please can you advise
whether a environmental risk assessment has been carried out as part of the proposal, and the
outcome of this assessment.
Contents of 7th March 2021 Letter (resubmitted)
Please find below our objections and comments to the Eastleigh Borough Council’s statement of
reasons, to the proposed parking restrictions related to Flowers Close
(a) the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises;
Currently residents do not experience access problems to premises, caused by vehicles
parking partly on the pavement. However, this will become an issue should the prohibition
of footway parking, as currently proposed be introduced, due to the narrow width of the
road.
(b) the effect on the amenities of any locality affected and (without prejudice to the generality
of this paragraph) the importance of regulating and restricting the use of roads by heavy
commercial vehicles, so as to preserve or improve the amenities of the area through which
the roads run;
Flowers Close is a cul-de-sac and therefore, with the exception of delivery vehicles, is not
affected by this statement of reason.
(c) the importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of securing the
safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such vehicles;
Presently, due to residents parking partly on the pavement where necessary, public service
vehicles are safely able to ingress and egress Flowers Close. However should the
enforcement of the proposed parking restrictions be implemented, the aforementioned
vehicles, especially emergency services and refuse collection vehicles will potentially have
difficulty accessing Flowers Close. We foresee that our refuse collection will be disrupted
when access is restricted.
(d) for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any other road or
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising (s.1 RTA 1984).
We understand the rationale for this statement, however pedestrian traffic in Flowers Close
is mainly between Hamble Lane and Sydney Ave and vice versa, using the ‘short cut’. This is
not an issue for pedestrians as the vehicles are parked on the highway and not the
pavement. From the corner of Flowers Close to the end of the cul-de-sac, pedestrian traffic
is minimal.
It is worth noting that currently vehicles routinely parked between the entrance of Flowers Close on
the right hand side, are in the majority owned by residents living in Hamble Lane and Sydney
Avenue. We foresee that the parking along this small stretch and beyond will increase due to parking
restrictions due to be imposed in Sydney Avenue. We would like the Council to take this into
consideration, as this street parking will be required by residents of Flowers Close, if the proposed
changes go ahead.

99

We own a motorhome, 6.7m in length and 2.3m wide. We have experienced a problem in the past
when a vehicle has been parked wholly on the road, e.g. Tesco Delivery, and our only option would
have been to drive partly on the pavement to pass it. However since Coronavirus lockdown, the
number and frequency of delivery vehicles has increased exponentially. We have already witnessed
them driving on the pavements where there is no need, and this is with cars partly parked on the
pavement. This is a potential risk which likely to increase with the prospect of the parking
restrictions as proposed.
Recently we had a window company visit. The driver parked on the road, outside our house, which
left 2.7m for other vehicles to pass. At this time there were no other vehicles parked in the street.
However this caused issues for our neighbour accessing her driveway. If however there had been
other vehicles parked on both sides of the road, this would have drastically reduced the available
width to pass.
Currently due to Coronavirus restrictions the street parking has been minimal, however once visitors
are allowed again, the street parking, and proposed parking restrictions will become difficult,
potentially causing an obstruction.
Interesting we have learned from a Hamble Parish Councillor, that they had not been informed or
consulted on these proposed changes. Why were they not consulted?

Beaulieu Road.
We have terrible difficulty getting out of our drive with cars park opposite. Sometimes I have to
knock and find out who car it is to get out of my drive. We live 4 houses away from hamble lane so
any form of temporary lines to prevent people park would be much appreciated.
Flowers Close

100

Norbury Gardens
Instead of restricting parking, provide extra parking for residents in coach road, Norbury Gardens
and Grantham Avenue. All this wasted green space could provide extra parking which would free up
congested roads, where does the council expect residents to park, it is a suburban area with rubbish
public transport, people need transport to earn a living.

Station Road
(email text)
I wish to make visible my objection to plans to limit ‘Traffic Waiting’ on Station Road Netley Abbey
Apart from the current speeding problems on Station Road , which are not addressed by the
restrictions or any other published notifications, the problem for a resident such as myself at
number 55 Station Road becomes that of access for myself and visitors.
The car parking in the village is insufficient and at a fair distance from my house. So a no waiting
imposition is quite an inconvenience.
It’s not an inconvenience imposed on residents on the opposite side of Station Road nor where it
may be needed most at the bottom end at the junction with Victoria Rd.
I suspect your reasoning for proposing this order is because your attention has been drawn to a
problem as a bus route.
The main problem for buses is the junction at the end of Station Road where cars park on the
roadside on one side. Ironically this is near to the car park. So a much better plan would be to
mandate off road parking at this junction and this would enable the buses to exit into Victoria Road.
Further up Station Road residents have noticed that parking on both sides reduces the speeding
problem.
Imposing parking restrictions removes this benefit without considering it’s detrimental impact on
the safety of the road traffic and for residents.
Furthermore the councils lack of interest in studying the problems of traffic in and around Netley
relating to speeding, noise, water drainage indicate it has no real idea of how to address current
problems and how to consult properly with residents.
Also, Word doc text received:
I am writing to express my concerns over the proposal to paint double yellow lines along the section
of Station Road from New Road up to No: 63.
The residents of Station Road, who will be affected by this proposal, have not been formally
consulted, some discovering it randomly on social media.
As a resident, my concerns, and those of the other residents on both sides of the road, have, for
several years, been the speed at which motorists drive.
We constantly live with anti-social behaviour demonstrated this way, particularly as motorists see a
straight section of road, and deliberately speed up.

101

However, on the occasions when a resident or tradesman has parked their vehicle on that side of the
road, a natural chicane appears, and of course, produces a slowing down of the traffic.
In going ahead with this action, it is my concern that the council risk a continuation of motorists
breaking the 30mph speed limit, which will inevitably result in danger to pedestrians.
Station Road should not be used as the quickest method to get from A to B, but rather, respect
should be given to the fact that it is a residential road, where the people living there need to be able
to have opportunity to cross the road in safety, pull off their drives, or reverse onto their drives,
easily, and be able to provide safe access to tradesmen who need to park within close access to the
house they are working in.
Double yellow lines will only serve to satisfy the motorists who see our road as as the fastest one in
the village, giving them an even greater excuse to speed.
I appreciate the council's consideration of my concerns.

Station Road
I would like to make a comment to the proposed restrictions.
There is a single parking space allowed on the dangerous bend outside 58 Station Road,
Netley. It seems strange that one space should cause such problem for drivers.
I think this space should be double yellow lines.

Sedgemead
Dear Sir/Madam,
I am writing with regard the proposed parking restrictions in Sedgemead. I have lived in my house
for 38 years and would be most upset to find parking restrictions and yellow lines. Although at times
people do park in the road, it has never caused a problem with access to my house, which is at the
far end. There are only six houses and it is only possible for people to park outside five of these
houses, which apart from the odd car, very rarely happens.
Yellow lines had previously been discussed within Sedgemead but I think you will find that the
majority of the residents are not in agreement with this proposal. If these restrictions are made it
would mean that it would not be possible for my children to visit me at the same time, one of them
would need to find alternative parking nearby which seems ludicrous with the amount of Council Tax
I pay to live in this road.

Flowers Close
I am a resident along with my elderly husband at no 23 Flowers Close. I wish to raise my objections
to two of the Statement of Reasons for the proposed TRO, while supporting the first Statement of
Reason.
No 1 Statement of Reason
I do fully endorse the proposal of restrictions at the junction of Flowers Close with Sydney Avenue.
There are frequently parked vehicles, including trade vans, right up to the junction with Sydney

102

Avenue which makes exiting the Close somewhat of a hazard because in passing these vehicles
residents are having to drive on the right hand side of the road with the risk of meeting head on
vehicles wishing to turn into the Close and vice versa.
No 2 and 3 Statements of Reason
I do object to further restrictions along the Close and consider them to be unnecessary. It is stated
that they will facilitate the passage of vehicles on the road. I would like to point out that Flowers
Close is very short and there is never a continual flow of traffic, either from residents, trades people
or commercial vehicles. There has never been a problem. There are few vehicles parked on the side
of the road as residents use their driveways. There may be the occasional visiting family car parked
on the road but these are always for short term stays and have never caused an obstruction to the
flow of traffic or caused any problems amongst residents. However, I can foresee problems may
arise if parking restrictions are imposed.
The third Statement of Reason is somewhat irrelevant to Flowers Close as we have no amenities
such as shops, restaurants or open spaces which need to be preserved or improved. The Close is only
made up of residential homes.
I hope you will take my concerns into consideration and re-evaluate the proposals.
Station Road
I am writing to object to the proposal to paint double yellow lines along the section of Station Road
from New Road up to No: 63.
There has been a severe problem with speeding up and down Station Road for man years and giving
motorists a ‘clear’ run will only exacerbate this.
This will not only result in more people breaking the speed limited but will increase the noise but
also more importantly will increase the danger to residents and pedestrians.
I would be very grateful if you could please take my concerns into consideration.
Sydney Avenue
I would like to propose that the current stretch of Sydney Avenue from the corner of the crescent
outside number 63, eastwards to the current double yellow lines on the corner of Beaulieu Rd is
designated for Sydney Ave resident Permit holders only please, for the following reasons:• One of the Bungalow residents is disabled and needs a space
• The other two bungalow residents are pensioners and need to park outside their houses
• My wife is registered disabled and needs to park outside our house, Number 63 on Sydney
ave, as it gives her access to our side gate.
This hasn`t been a problem in the past but recently some residents from Beulieu Road have been
leaving 2 campervans or their cars in the area mentioned above in Sydney Ave for over a week at a
time (one campervan was over a month) without moving.
Apologies if this is the wrong forum for this letter but thank you for reading

103

Flowers Close

104

Sedgemead
Although we have not requested the parking review about Sedgemead, we think that the EBC draft
is very good.
We have only one point we agree with strongly, which is the proposal for yellow lines in the turning
head, which would be an extremely good safety decision allowing Fire Engines etc. also Bin Lorries to
be able to turn and not have to reverse unnecessarily.
We don't have any other comments at this stage.
Station Road
I am sorry but I wish to object to the change in road markings proposed I believe it will create a race
track down station road with parking as it is now it slows it down cutting noise and accidents perhaps a traffic calming or scheme could be introduced instead ?

Flowers Close
I am a resident of Flowers Close, Hamble and I write in relation to the proposed parking restrictions
for Flowers Close which is causing concern.
As I understand it the proposed parking restrictions may not affect me directly as in theory (although
not a right to do so) any family/visitors/tradesmens should be able to park outside my property
but with the proposed parking restrictions this cannot be guaranteed or indeed the possibility of
being able to park in Flowers Close at all.
The ability to be able to park in the Close is going to be drastically reduced and I believe the
proposed parking restrictions will be detrimental to the Close as a whole as this will mean that the
houses that are affected who have more vehicles than can be parked on their driveways will need to
park elsewhere in the Close (if space available) and with the proposed parking restrictions thereby
limiting considerable the overall parking that would be available.
From the junction with Sydney Avenue this is already being used by some people who do not live in
the Close (I appreciate they are entitled to do so) but once again with the proposed restrictions
for places to park for the family/visitors/trademens of the residents of Flowers Close will be
significantly limited. This loss of parking will be very difficult at such times as bank holidays,
Christmas etc when families get together which in turn means more cars requiring parking.
In relation to moving forward if the restrictions are approved I would be very interested to hear your
views on how the loss of parking proposed for the residents of Flowers Close can be remedied by
‘new’ additional/access for places to park.
Oakwood Way
I have been reading your notice on the lamp post opposite my home regarding parking.
I am unable to work in lengths really but I would suggest that the “no parking at any time” goes as
far as No. 70. There are several bad bends in this area from No. 70 to Oakwood Way going towards
the village Square, where you cannot see round the bend unless you have a passenger to peer
around the corner for you. Also there are always cars parked on the opposite side of the road from
101 & 103. We were nearly caught out recently when a car came out of a drive with no visibility.

105

This page is intentionally left blank

